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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial stalements of Clix Capital Services
Private Limited ("the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheel as at March 31, 2021, the Statement
of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the vear then ended, and notes fo the standalone Ind AS
financial stalements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Im our opinion and to the besl of our information and according fo the explanalions given io us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statemenis give the information required by the Companies
Act 2013, as amended ("the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the stale of affairs of the Company as al
March 31, 2021, its profit including other comprahansive income, ils cash flows and tha changeas in aquity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial stalements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibiliies under those
Standards are further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Staterments’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Charered Accouniants of India together with the ethical
requiremeants that are relavant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requiremeants and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audil evidence we have cblained is sufficiant
and appropriate o provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Mate 7.5 to the Slandalona Ind AS financial statement, which describes the continuing
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Company's operations and s financial metrics, parlicularly on
the expected cradit loss on financial assets, which are dependeni on uncertain fulure events. Our opinion
is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in cur
audit of the standalona Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. Thase
matiers were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial stalements as a
whale, and in forming our opinion thareon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on thesa mattars,
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matler is provided in thal context.

We have determined the matiers described below to be the key audit matters o be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled tha responsibilities described in the Auwdidor's responsibilities for the audit of the
standalone Ind AS financial stalements section of our repor, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit incleded the performance of procedures designed to respond to cur assassment of
the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The results of our auwdit
procedures, inchuding the procedures perdformed to address the matiers below, provide the basis for cur
awdit opinion on the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements.
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statements)

e el

Impairment of Financial assets (as descnbed in Mole 7 of the standslone ind AS fnancial

The Company's impairmeant provision for
financial assets is based on the expecied
credit lkoss (ECL) approach laid down
under ‘Ind A5 109 Financial Instruments’.
ECL mvolves an estimation of probability-
wighted loss on  the financial
insfrumenis owver their life, considering
reasonable and supportable information
about past evenis, curment conditions,
and forecasts of fulure economic
conditions which could impact the credi
quality of its financial assels (loans and
advances), In the process, a significant
degres of judgement has been applied by
the management in respect of following
matiers:

a. Defining thresholds for significant
increase in credit risk ('SICR") and
‘defaull’,

b. Grouping of I|oans under
homogenous pocls 1o dalermine
probability of default on a collective
basis and calculation of past default
rates,

¢. Estimation of managament overlay
for macro-economic factors which
could impact the credit quality of tha
loans.

Considering the evolving nature of the
COVID-18  pandemic, which has
continued to impact the Company's
businass operations, resulling in higher
lban losses, the Company has
cansidered managament overlay as parl
aof its ECL, to reflect among other things
the increased risk of deterioration in
macro-aconomic factors

Given the unique nature of the pandemic
and the exteni of Hs economic impact
which depends on fulure developmenis
including govermmental and regulatory
measures and the Company's responses
theralo, the aclual cradit loss can bae
different thamn that being estimated,

In view of the high degres of
managemeant's judgement involved in
astimation of impabrment allowance it s
considerad as a key audit matier.

Our audit procedures included considering the
Company's accountimg policies for impairment of
financial instrurments and assessing complance with
the policies in terms of Ind AS 109 and the
governance ramework approved by the Board of
Directors  pursuani fo Reserve Bank of India
guidedines issued on March 13, 2020,

Read and assessed the Company's policy with
respect Io  one-time restructuning offered  to
customers pursuant to the “Resclution Framewaork for
COVID-18-related Siress” issued by REI on August
6, 2020 and tested the implementation of such policy
on a sample basis,

Azsessad the assumplons used by the Company for
grouping and staging of lan porifolio into various
categories and default buckets and their
appropriateness for determining the probability of
dafault (PD) and loss-given default (LGD) rates.
Tested controds for staging of loans based on thedr
past-dus status. Also tested samples of stage 1 and
Stage 2 loans to assess whather any loss indicators
ware present requiring them o be classified under
higher stages.

Azsessed the additional considerations applied by
the management for staging of loans as SICR or
defaull categories in view of Company's policy on
one-time restructuring.

Tested samples of the input data wused for
datermining the PD and LGD rates and agreed the
data with the underlying books of account and
records.

Tested assumptions used by the management in
determining the overlay for macre-economic factors
(including COVID-19 pandemic).

Tested the arithmelical accuracy of computation of
ECL provision performed by the Company in
spreadsheels.

Compared the disclosures included in the Ind AS
financial statements in respect of expected credit
losses with the requirements of Ind AS 107 and 109,
Aszsessed speciflc disclosures made in the Ind AS
financial statements with regards o the impact of
COVID-18 on ECL estimation,
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Other Informaticn

The Company's Board of Direcfors is responsible for the olher information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Direclor's Report bt does nat include the standalone Ind AS
financial statements and owr auditor's. report thereon. The other information is expected fo be made
available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Clur opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial staternents does nol cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereaon,

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whelher the other
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone Ind AS financial statements or cur knowledge
ablained in the audil of olhefwise appears 1o be malterially missiated.

When we read such other information, if we conclude that there is a8 material misstatemeant therain, we ane
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and to comply with the relevant
applicable requirements of the standard on auditing for auditor's responsibility in relation to other
infermation in documents containing audited financial statements.

Responsibilities of Managament for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors s responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a frue and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified undar section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other imegularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies;, making judgments and eslimates thal are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementalion and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and prasaniation of the standalona Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatermeant, whether due to fraud or ermror.

In prepanng the standalone Ind AS financial statemenis, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's abllity to continue as a going concermn, disclosing, as applicable, matters refated fo going
concem and using the going concamn basis of accounting wnless manageameani either infends to iquidate
the Company or 1o cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process,
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole ara free from material misstaternant, whather due to fraud or error, and to issue an
awditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatamant
when it exisis. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or eror and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected fo influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  |dentify and assess the risks of material missiatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whelher due fo fraud or emror, design and perform audit procedures responsive o those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate lo provide a basis for our opindon. The risk of
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nof detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from arror,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misreprasentalions, or the overnide of
imternal control,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant o the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adegquate internal financial controls with
refereance to financial staternents in place and the oparating effectiveness of such controls.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

*  Conclude on the approprialeness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting
and, based on the audil evidence oblained, whather a matenal uncerainty axists related 1o events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability fo conlinue as a going concemn, If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
io the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 1o modify
our opinion. Dur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
reporl. However, future events or condilions may causa the Company 1o cease lo conlinue as a going
CONCEIM,

« Evaluate the overall presentation, siructure and content of the siandalone Ind AS financial
slatameants, including the disclasures, and whather the standalone Ind AS financial slatements
represent the underlying transaclions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with thosa charged with governance regarding, amaong other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contral
that we identify during ouwr audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statermeant that we have complied with relevan
athical requirements reganrding indepandence, and to communicate with them all relaticnships and othar
ma[ﬂﬂm :dw may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governancea, we determine those mattars that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financial year
ended March 31, 2021 and ara therefore the key audit mattars. We describe these maltters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation preciudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we delarmine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
congsequencas of doing so would reasonably be expecied to cubweigh the public interest benefils of such

commiunication.
Reaport on Other Lagal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Reporl) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure 1°
a statermant on the matiers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Ordar.

2. Az required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and cblained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowladge and belisf ware necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b} Inowur opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
a% it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheei, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Siatement of Other
Comprehensive Incomea, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreemant with the books of account;
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id} In our opinicn, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial siatements comply with the Accounting
Standards speciied under Seclion 133 of the Acl, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rubes, 2015, as amended;

(e} Onthe basis of the written represeniations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 1684 (2) of the Act

iff With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial confrols cver financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operaling
effectiveness of such controls, refer to cur separate Report in "Annexure 27 to this report;

(g} The provisions of seclion 187 read with Schedule V' of the Act are not applicable to the Company
fof the year ended March 31, 2021;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of tha Companies [(Audit and Auditors) Rulas, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the bast of
cur information and according to the explanations given lo us;

i.  The Company does nol have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
Rafer Mote 52 in the financial statermant;

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including dernvative contracts for which
there were amy material foreseeable losses. Refer Mote 51 in the financial statement;

fii. There wera no amaounts which were required to be transferred to the Investior Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 101045WE3D0004

per Bharath N S

Pariner

Membership Number; 210534
UDIN: 21210834 88A0C58410
Piace of Signature: Channai
Date: June 04, 2021
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our repont of even date

Re: Clix Capital Services Private Limited

(i} (a)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and sifuation of fixed assets,

(b} All fixed assels were physically verified by the managemeant in the previous year in accordance
with a planned programme of verifying them once in two years which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets, Mo material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

{e) According to the information and explanations given by the management and audil procedures
performed by us, the title deeds of immovable properties included in fixed assets are held in the
name of the Company, except in the case of 2 freehold lands with carrying value of Rs 20,44 lacs
(Gross block of Rs. 22,36 lacs) as at March 31, 2021 respectively, wherain as explained to us, the
Company is in process of reconciling the fixed asset register with the title deeds and hence we
are unable to comment on the same

{iiiy Tha Company's business does not involve invenlories and, accordingly, the requiremants under
clause 3 (i) of the Order are not applicable o the Company and hence nol commented upon,

{iiiy According o the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
Izans, secured or unsacured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
coverad in the regisier maintained under section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013, Accordinghy,
the provisions of clausa 3(iii) (a). (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hance not commented upon.

{iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given o us, there are no loans,
invastments, guaranteas, and securities givan in respect of which prowvisions of section 185 and
186 of the Act are apphcable and hence not commented upon,

(W} The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceplance of Deposits) Rules. 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(wi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Govermment has nol specihed the
maintenance of cost records under section 148{1) of the Act, Tor the services of the Company,

{¥il) (a)The Company is regular in deposiling with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, amployeas’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, sarvice tax, duty of
cusiom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statulory dues
applicable to it.

(b} According to the information and explanations given 1o us, no undisputad amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of
custom, duly of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues
were cutstanding, al the vear end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payahbla,

(¢} According to the records of the Company, tha dues of income tax |, service tax, value added tax
and cess on account of any dispule are as follows:
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{wiii)

{ix}

(=}

{xi}

{ i)

(i)

5 nt Period 1o
Hature of the which the | Forum where the dispute is
Name of the Statute D (Rs. in it pending
lakhs) mﬂ'mm Hu
2 2003-04 Customs, Excise and
Finance Act, 1994 3:‘”“ o 2 650,64 | 102007- | Service Tax Appeliate
i oo |08 Tribunal
Value Added m:! : ED: i “}T_ Assistant Commissioner
Rajasthan VAT Act, 2003 Tax 20.49 | 114 Works Confract and Leasing
201213 | '
. Value Added Assistant Commissioner
e Tax 42,07 | #1293 | \special Hearing Officer)
2005-06
to 2007-
Maharashtra VAT Act, Value Added 08 and Joint Commissioner of Sales
2002 Tax 588.51 | 2010-11 Tax (Appaal)
to 2011-
| . 12 :
Tax, Interest Inspecting Assislant
vorala VAT Act, 2005 and Panalty 1.80 2006 Commissioner, Ermakulum
g WValue Added Assistant Commissionar,
_Rﬂﬂ-ﬂ'lﬂn VAT Act, 2003 Tax 2,00 2011-12 VAT
Value Added Assistant Commissioner,
P VAT Act Tax 318 2011-12 VAT

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulled in repayment of loans or borrowing o a financial institution, bank or
government or dues to debeniure holders.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has utilized the monies raised by way of term loans and debt instruments in the nalure
of Non-convertible debentures for the purposes for which they were raised,

Further, monies raised by the Company by way of ierm loans and debt instruments were applied
for the purpose for which those wene raised, though idlefsurplus funds which were nol required for
immediate utilization were gainfully invested in liquid invesiments payable on demand, The
maximurm amount of idia'surplus funds invested during the year was Rs 53,259 lakhs, of which
Rs. 31,890 lakhs was outstanding at the end of the year.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial stalements and according lo the information and explanations given by the
managemeant, we report that no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by
the officers and employess of the Company has been noticed or reporied during the year.

According o the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid and provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated
by the provisions of section 187, read with Schedule V to the Act.

in our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of
tha Order are not applicable 1o the Company and hence nol commeantad upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with seclion 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the
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datails hawve been disclosed in fhe notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
complied with provisions of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the preferential
alloiment of shares. According to the informaticn and explanations given by the managemaent, we
report that the amounts raised, have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

(=¥}  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with the directors as
referred to in section 192 of the Act,

{xvi}  According to the information and explanations given fo us, we report that the Company has
registered as required, under section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Mumber: 101049WE3DD004

per Bharath N S
Partnar

Membership Number; 210234
UDIN: 21210834 A8A58C58410

Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: Junea 04, 2021
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Annexure 2 referred in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Clix Capital Services Private
Limited(the Company”™) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intermnal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal conirol stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Crwer Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequale internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the ordaerly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the Company's policies, the safeguarding of ils assels, the prevention and detection of frauds and emors,
the accuracy and complateness of the accounting records, and the limely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Cur responsibility i to express an opinion on the Compamy’s internal financial controls over financial
raporting with refarence 1o these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
awdit in accordance with the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Ower Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of infernal financial controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Charered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Mole require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference fo these standalone
financial statements was established and maintained and if such conirols operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence aboul the adequacy of the intemal
financial controls ower financial reporiing with reference o these standalone financial slatements and theair
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial conirols over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial repoding with reference to these siandakone
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operaling effectivenass of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of malerial
misstaiement of the financial statemants, whether due to fraud or ermor.

‘Wea balisve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for
our audit opindon on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference o these
standalone financial statements,

Meaning of Intarnal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financial
Statements

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting with reference o these standalone financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabifity of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepled accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with
referance o these standalone financial statements incledes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
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to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of thir assels of the company, (2] provide reasonable assurance that iransactions ane reconded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and thal receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and direciors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or imely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporiing With Reference to
these Stamdalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of inlermal financial conlrols over financial reporting with reference to
these standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstaternents due to efmor o fraud may oocur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluafion of the internal financial controls over financial reporling with reference to
these standalone financial statemenis to future periods are subject to the risk that the intermnal financial
control over financial raporting with reference to these standalone financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
proceduras may deteriorale.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and such inlernal financial conirols over
financial reparting with reference to these standalone financial statements were cperating effectivaly as at
March 31, 2021, based on the internal coniral over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential componanis of intarnal conirol stated in the Guidanca Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of India.

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 101049WE3ID0004

per Bharath N S

Fartner

Membership Number; 210934
Place of Signatura: Channai
Date; June 04, 2021
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Clin Capital Services Private Limited
Muodes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 01
{4 avmaced in WR Locs, dnargd for shane darg unlees staned athevnivig]

1. Corporate information

Clix Caginal Services Private Limsted ['OCSPL] {the Company'] is a private imited comguaey domicied i india and
incorpocated @ 11 Febnaary 1998 under the providlons of Companies Acl, 1956 with CN-
UES8209DL1994PTC1 16256, The Company s Mor-Banking Fimance Company' "MBFC) regatened with the Reserve
Bank of imdia {'ABT) with Reghdration Mo, B-14.02950, The Comgany i primarily engaged in Commarcial; Micra,
Smal mnd Medium enterpeise [MEME) and Condurner lending. The Company doss not sicepl depsiis from the
public. The Compary’s registered office s at dth floor, Kailesh Badlding. Easturba Gandhi Mang. Connaught Place
M Dalhi Mesth East Dl 110000 iN.

2 (1) Basds of preparation

Thee standalcre finamclal Statements have been pregaced in acoordance with Indian Accounting Staedards {Ind AS)
a8 pir 1he Cempanis Dndun Accowming Sandardy] Rules, 2015 a5 amendid lvom time ba tee and notilied under
seckion 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) slceg with other refevant proviiors of the Act, the Master
Direction = Mon-Banking Finascial Company = Sysiomicaly Important Bon-Deposit taking Compary [Resense Bank)
Direcnions, J0L6 [the NBFC Maater Dirsctians’| and notiliestion lor iImplementagion of edan Acosaming Standand
vide crculer RB0NS-20/170 DOR[MEFC)LCCPONG IO/ IE 10 I0E/2009-20 dated 13 March 3020 [B8|
Motification for Implementation of ind AS') isswed by FEL

() Basl of meaiurdebt

The firancial stsfements hive been prepared on a kaforics! cost bash, except for financiy) Javets held for trading
mﬂmmmmuwnmrmwmumqmm:uerﬁ'm
masunid 3t Tair vadoe. The financial Slalemssnts ane prasenbed in indien Rupees (INR] and all values are rounded 19
the rearest lakhs, except when othersise indicated.

[ Prédewtation of financial statements

Thie Cesnpasy presents its balince sheel @ order of Sguadey. Financisl steets and Ninsnclal labikeie are generuly
reporied gross in the balence sheet. They are only offued and reported net whern, the Company has uncondiional
legally enforceable right 1o offset the recognised amoasnits without being contingent on a fulure event, the pamics
il intend 19 wettle on & ret badig in 81 of the foliowing dioamstance:

A. The normal oo of business

B. Thi evest of defalt

C. The vt of inselvency or barkruploy of the Company and/or ilh coumBrparie.

fhormde—




Clin Capital Services Private Limited
Muodes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 01
{4 avmaced in WR Locs, dnargd for shane darg unlees staned athevnivig]

3. significant accounting policies

1.1 Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with ind AS reguires the managermsent o make
Judgments, ERimales and pisumptions 1Rat Jledy the reported amsunti of fevenues, Sxpengel, ety and
lighdlities and the diaciciere of comingent lishlibes, at the end of the reporting penicd. Altkough these
pstimates ae based on the maragement’s best knowledge of curent events and actions, uncertainty about
thiske Sdauiegiliond and pilvmates could reult 0 the puldomes reguiing & malerisl adjustment 1o the Carmang
amountys of gssets or lighiities = fwdure periods. Further, refer note § for dgnificant sccounting jpdgements,

estimates and assumptions used by Comgpany.

1.2 Cavh and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash balances on hand, cath balances in bank, and highly liguid investments
with matwrity poriod of theee months or loss rom the date of isostennt,

R




Clin Capital Services Private Limited
Muodes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 01
{4 avmaced in WR Locs, dnargd for shane darg unlees staned athevnivig]

1.3 Recognition of incomse and expenis

Revernse |cEher 1Ban lor those ibems 19 wiich ind A% 100 Financisl inviruments are spplicible) & mestored 48 Tair
value of the consideration received or receivable.

Thi Company meoogrises rvenue from contriils with ouslomeds baiesd on & Tree step model b8 4t oo m Ind AS
115:

Steg 1: bdesily comiract{s) with a custoened: A contract i defined a5 an Jgreeemesnl DETWESN WD oF MOTE DaTiet
that crestes enlorceable rights and obigationn and setd cof the oriteria for every contract that must B met,

Soap 1 identify perfarmancs oldigations in The contract: & perfarmancs obdigsion | & promise i a contract with
a cusbomer o transfer & good or servioe o the ousiomser,

ftep B Determine the bransaction price: The trasngction price iy the smount of consideration to which the
Compary ewpecis 1o be entiled in eschange for trassderring promised goosds or serdces o a customes, excluding
amounts collected on beha of third parties,

Stip 4 Alocate thi Transaciion price 10 the performance oagations in the comiract: For a comiract TRat has more
then one peformance cbligation, the Campany sllocates the transaction price o eech performance abigation in
an amount that depicts the amount of consideration o which the Group expects 1o be entitled in eschange for
satistying wach performance obligation.

St 5: Bicogacas ievenus whan (o7 as) this Compadry satishad & pavlamancs skigation

a} Imberest and similar ncome

inteveit mcome, for al financial instruments eeasured edther 31 amortsed oot or @i fair walue
through oiher compeehenihve income. i3 recorded using the elfective interest rate (DIR), EIR i the rate that
paactly divcounts the estimated fubsre cash payments or receipts over the expected |ife of the financial instrument
or 3 shorier pariod, where appropeiate, 1o the grog camrying amount of the feancal asser. The caloulation takes
Into aecoird all contractual bersd of the Hinendisl imtrument (Rar Example, prégayment aptiord] and inchuded any
fees or inoremental costs that are dinectly attributable and are an integrad part of the EIR, but not future onedit
losses.

bl Foreclosure chanpes and other feed
Forediowsre charges and other fees which include cheque bounce charges, penad fee, legal changes and prepayment
eharpet BLL. ire recogrised @ income when [here s covranty regaeding 1he receipt of payenenl.

el Dividend income
Diwidend income & recognized when the Company™s right bo receise the payment & esiablhed. 8 is peobable that
thee economsc benelits assoriated with the dvidend will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be

maaiuned reliably, This 5 generally when shisehelders aggrowe the dividend,

d] Lease rental income

Lease rertal income ansing from opevabeg leases is acoounted for on a straight-line bash over the Ieae terms and
it included i reatal inoeme in the ststement of proafit oF leds, waleds the incnsate i in ling with sxpicted geseeal
inflation, in which cine lepe income is recognised baved on contractual bermm.

o) Dbl advisery fees

Aevermse from contract with cuatomer is fecognised poing in time when perficrmunce obligation is satafied |when
the trade is siecuted]. These inciude debt adviuorny fees which 15 charged per traraaction sascuted.

el ¥
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Clin Capital Services Private Limited
Muodes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 01
{4 avmaced in WR Locs, dnargd for shane darg unlees staned athevnivig]

1.4 Faseign fuFrEncy

The Company's financly statements are presended i indlas Rupees (INR) whach is also the Company's functional
CLETBACY.

Traeaaciions in (oewign currencies ane initially recorded Ey the Company at theif respective Tunctional curfency spot
ot ol The date 1he transection fird guialifies fod recognitsan, intome and experdes &5 foreign Currencies. ane
Initlally recorded by the Company af ike exchange rates prevalling oo the dade of the trasaction.

Fareign furrivty dencminabed monetary assels and lakilities s pranglated ot the funclional curreéncy spol
raties of eschange af the reporting date avd exchange pains and lcases arising on setflement a0 restatement are
riscognired i the staberesnt of profit 2 loss.

Mon-monetary iberms Ehal are measured in terms of historical cost in @ foreign currency @ ranslated using the
exchange rates at the dabes of the initlal transacteone, Mon-mometary Aems measured a1 fair waloe in 3 foreign
orEncy afe anileted using the exchangs fate o1 the dale when the Liir vador I8 determiced. The gain of ki
araing on tranafation of non-monetary iberms measuned at fair value i3 treated in ling with the recognition of the
gaim or loss om the change in fair valkee of the item {Le, transiation differences on ems whose fair value gain or
lgisg b Fecegniied & O0 oF pralt &F s e alia Fecoghited 6 O] oF prolt oF I6dd, redgsatheely),

3.5 Expeivsdituire

Expenans are recognised on acorual basis and provitions are made for 2% known losses and labéities. The Company
has aiso enbered inbo cevian oo sharieyg arangements for pesources shared with other entites. The costa
alccated o the Company under the codt sharisg arrisgements are ncluded In the reipective sxpenses. The costs
alccated to other entifies under the cost sharing arrangement are shown a3 @nounts recowerable from the
IERDHSCTWE partes.

a} Interest expense
Intedest Expensd includes Bsue cowa that @ Inially rocognized ay parl of the camyieg walee of the financial
lighslity and amortited over the expecied life using the effective infensd method. These include fee pod

comnimissions. payable 1o arrangers and other expenses such as exiernal legad oosts, provided these are inoremenital
ot thag aee directly related 1o thie Bausp of a financisl latdivy,

3.6 Property, plant and equipment [PPE| and Intangible asets

PRl

FPE are sisied at oot (including incidental expenses directly attributable fo bringing the asset to Its working
corsdion Tor i3 intereded vae) e scourvaliced depeeciaion and impakimsee losses, I any, Coml commpriias thi
purchase piice and any aitributable cost of bringing the assel to ity working condition Tor Rs lended use,
Subsequent expenditure related to FPE B apitalized only when & B probable that fubure sconoméc benefits
associated with thewe will Now 10 the Company ad the coal of iDivn can be maasuntd relably, Othar repain e
manterance coits sre expensed o 44 and when incurred,

An mem of property, plant amd equiprent and any significant pan initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when red folure edonomic berslily e dxpeched Irom i use of dispossl, Ay gain or ks armiing on de-
recognition of the asset {cakoulated as the difference between the net dieposs] proceeds and the carrying amount
of thie 2t ) is wcluded in the stabermsend of profit 2nd loss winen the 2ot i dereoognived.

indangitile fised ascets

The Comparvy's intangible swets mainky include the value of omputer software. An intangible asset ks recognised
oaly when (L3 cost cn be medssied reliably and it s probable i 1R expecied fulure pconcmic binedits that are
attributable 1o it will Alow 10 the Company.

Intargible assels aoquired separately are mednsted on infial recognition af oot Following il recognitian,
intangible sasets dre carried aE Cost s any Bocumslibed amcrtivation and scoumulited impairent lotse,

Wt




Clin Capital Services Private Limited
Muodes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 01
{4 avmaced in WR Locs, dnargd for shane darg unlees staned athevnivig]

1.7 Deprecistion and amanization

Deprecistian

1] Dwened assets

ia] Leasahold imgrosements are aenonised over b ase term as staled i ke dease agreement o wseful life of
Ehi asset whichever il lower,

[b] Depreclation on cther owred fised assets & proided on straight e mcthod a8 the rades, computed baed on
estimated usefd fife of those sdsets at presoribed wnder Schedule || to the Companies Ao, 20013, Land is not

deprigigtied.

The estimated useha’ lves are, o follows:

- Cemputes 3 jpars
- Oifice pquipmant G yeary
« Furnfture amd forbones 10 years
- Conputer softwarnes 5 o

Thie residual wabses, uselsl Ives arsd methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
sach financis wir end and adjusted prospectively, IF appropriate,

Acksats given on ogedating lease
Aviety piven on operating lease pre deprecisfed 1o their residual wvalue 33 estimated by the managemsnt, on &
straight:bme basts owver the expected wsedul life of the aaset or fease term, whichever is lower.

Assets taken on finance lese

Azoets taken on finance lease are being depreciated on the straight-line method to & residual value over the lease
i of uiilul life, wiichiwer i lowir, b the cpinicn of the managemaent, (B aloreiald depreciation rates rellece
the economic useful ey of e fooed asaets.

3.8 impalrmant of man-financial ssety

Tha canrying amount of assets i rrdewsd ai each Balance sheet date if there & any indication of impaimeseed based
on infernplfesternyd facted An impairment B4 18 regopnised whecever (ke carrying amount of a8 Jisat
paceeds ity recoverable amound. The recoverable amours s the greater of the assets, net selling price and value in
usg. In anpessing value in use, the estimaced future cash fows are discounied 19 thoir present value using a
pre-tia dacount fate thal felects furnes] markel Misdamenty ol the Hime value &l money and rivhs ipsdific 1o the
asset. in detenmining net sslling price, recent mariet trarsactions are taken inlo account, i awallabée. f oo
such transactions cam be idensified, an appropriate vakation modd ks used,

After impameent, depreciation is provided on the revised arrging amount of the asset over its remaining eeful
I,

1.8 Prowiticns

Provisions are recognised when the Compary has 3 present obigation {legal or constnactive] as a nesult of a past
evenh, it i probable that an cutlow of necwros embodying econdmic banaflits will ke nequined to wetle
the obligation and a reliable estirmute can b made of the amoant of the obligation.

Provisions {eacluding retirement beneliia] are not discounted o chelr present value and are determined bated on
the beat edtimate required 1o setlie the chigation a1 the balance sheet date. B the eflect of 1he time valoe of
marey s material, provisions are discounted using a coment pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriabe, the risks
ipetific 1o the Eabifry. When Sscounting is used, 1he incredss in the prowision due 10 the passags o time
1§ récagriiad & 8 inance codt,

Mot




Clin Capital Services Private Limited
Muodes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 01
{4 avmaced in WR Locs, dnargd for shane darg unlees staned athevnivig]

1L.10 Contingent Rabsitiey and sisets

The Company oo not FeConiee a contingent lability Bt dsckoes ils existence in the financial staements.
Continpen labslily iy discloded in ke case af;

- A presend abligation anaing fram past evends, when A is not probable that an cutflow of resources. embodying
eronomic benefits will be requined to settie the obiigaton

- A present cbigation arking Irom past events, when ne relable sstimate i posible
- & periakle phligation arising frorm past ewenty unlins 1Fe probahiity of eaitflow of resountes i remote

Continpet lakslites are reviewed ot each balance shaot date.

Condinpent asselr are not recognised, A conlingent asset B disclosed, & required by Ind AS 37, wheve an
infioes of economic bencfits i probable.

1.11 Retirement and other employee benefits
The Company™s cbligation Toands vasious employwsd Banelics Bad Been recogriied s folknas:

Short:term employes benefits

Al emplopis beesfit payable available within teslve monihs of resdering the senvics arn Clanified a3 shoet-term
employes benefits. Benelitd such sa sslaries, wages snd bores S, e recognised in the Statement af Profit snd
Liosa in thee period i which the emplossee renders the related servce.

Defimed contribution plan
Prowvident fund b a defined contribution pfan. The confribetion towands provident fund 'has been deposiied with
Regional provident fund commissioner and i charged 10 Stabempnt of Profn and Loss.

Defired benefit plan

Thie Coenpasry pays gratulty to employees who retiee o rosipn after 3 mindmum period of fieee years of continas
sieraice, The Company makes comtribulion 1o it own Geatuity Trest, The gratuity trust imats the contribution in
Imsures ranaped wchemne.

Dthaer long:term benefits - Compensated abwences

Entitlements to anfusl Ibave are iecognised whan thy sccrun | empioyes. Balance [eaves, il afy can be encahed
at the tierse of retirerrent betrmination ol employment. The Company determines the Sabilty for such atcumadated
lave enditiemaents on the bashs of actuaria) valuation as 28 the year end.

The Habdity in respect of &0 defired benefit pland and other long tefm benelits & scerued in the books of account
on the basks of sctusrial valustion caeried out by an independent scthuary using the Projected Unit Credi Method.
The ohigation is moacuned at the present value of timated fuhse cash Niows.

Remaasurements, comprising of actulial gara and |cases, the elffecy al the pet celing. extluding smounts
included in met interest on the net defined berefit llablity and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included In net Inberess on the raf dilined benelit labiksy], ade risCOpfinked imately W 1he balasos dhiel with &
corresponding debil or credit to retained esrnings (Beough DCin the paricd in which they ocour, Bermeisurements
are not reclassified to prof or foas in subsegquent periods.
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.12 Tamins

Tan ewpense comprises cuirent and deferred tax.
Cusranl incormss tax

Cigrent intome Lo assets and labdites gre mediured ol the amcont expected 1o be redavered Fom o
pald fo the tamation authorgies i socordance with Income tas Act, 1961, Income Computation and Disclosure
Standards arsd other appicable tax lavws, The tae rates amd tax s used 00 compute The amount &he Those That are
enached of substatively enacted, at the reparting date.

Ca T WPscoimier T20 T Eing, 10 IO Pecopmeed outsdes pof of lows v recognised cutside proft or loss (sTher in
pther (omprehanihve infome of in equity). Current tax ibermn are recopniied i cofrel@ion 1o the underlding
transaction esther in OCF or difecily in equity,

Misienum Anernate T [MAT] paid i scoondandi wilh [he B s, which during the spedified period gves lulute
econceic berefity in the form of adjustment to future income tax Rablity, & considensd ad an adset il there b5
roewincing evidence that the Company wil pay normal incoma tae. Accordiegly, MAT i recogrised 28 a0 asset in
the Balwsse SEawl whisn il is highty probable that Ruhete scondamic Benalit associaed with it will Now o the
Cormpary,

Deferred tia

Deferred tax is provided using the aaset.lizbdity method oo lemporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and Eabinies 3 thisl carving amsuntt Rar Frainal reperting purpoes 51 thi reporting date,

Deferred tan aseets ane recognised for al deductible temporary differences, the cany forward of wused tax onedits
and @y unused i bokeii. Delerned [ax asseti ané reoognied Do the @xent that it is probable 1that taxable
profit wil be available against which the deductible temporary diferences, aned the carry Torward of wwned tas
credits and unused t3% fosses can be wtllbed.

The canying amoet of deferred ban svcefs b reviewed 28 each reporting date and reduced to the exient
thadt I'I:BMWMMMMMMHIHMWMHIWMEEIMMM
assdl 1o B utfised. Unrecognited delerned tia aassbs are re-assessed ot sach repowting date and are
recognived bo the extend that it has become probable that futere taxsble profits will allow the deferred tax assat
b0 e reossereil

Dlerred tax assrts and labdites ang mpasaned 41 1he Tax rales that ane expected 1o Jpgdy in 1P year when the
avset I8 reaised or the Rabigy 5 settied, based on tex rafes [and G lews) that have been eracied or substentively
enacted at the repoerting dake.

Delerred tax relsting to Sems recognised ouldde peols! o loss W orecogrised ouftside profit of loas (esther
in other compreberaive income or in egquity]. Deferred tax Rems are recognised i corelation o the underiying
transactian sxher in 000 or dinectly In guity,

Deferred tan assets and deferred tan |inbitthes are offet if a legally enforceable right exists 1o set off oerent tan
ARSETS Apanal current fan llabdites and the deferned taxes relate 10 The same taxabis entity and the Sane Ta o
mitiaity,

3.13 Easming par share

Basic earnings. per share are calodated by dividing the net profit or loss for the yesr attribwtable to eguity
sharehotders by 1he weiphted sverage rumber of equity thares culstanding during the period. Partly paid eguity
sharei sre tregled a1 4 freciion ol @ equity thare to the extent thal they ane enlitlsd to participae in dividendy
relative to 8 Tully pald eguity share during the reporting year.

For the purpoee of calodating dluted esmings per share, the net profit or kes for the year attnbssiable
1o #gity shareholders and the weighted averape romber of shanes culstanding during the period ae adjusted for
the effects of &l dikitive potentl egulty shares,

ot s
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3,14 $hare based paymends

Equity-settied shee baded payments b0 emplopssl e othin providing slmilar seriges are msasured at the fair
value of the equity Fairuments at the grant dabe.

Thie fair valusr determined at the grant date of the sguitysettied share baed paymants is sxperded on @ straight
lirer BasiS over (R vesting perind, Based on the Company's estimate ol eguilty instroments that will

pventualy vest, with a8 cormeiponding increase in eguity. At the o of cach reporting penod, the Company
revises s estimate of the number of eguity insirureents especied 1o vest. The impact of the revision of the original

estimates, f any, & recegnised in Statement of Prafic and Loss such that the cumulitive @xpieras melfiects the
rewised etimate, with a corresponding adjstmend 1o the Share Baed Payments Resere,

The dikthed effect of sutitanding eptions i refectied @ additional share dilution In the computation of diluted
edrrings per share,

3.15 Firascial indtrumsisis

A fingrclal instrumeend s any contrack thak gives rise fo a finencial asset of one entity and a financial
lakality o pguity irument of anoiker eriity.

1.15.1 Ararcisl Assets

1,15.1.1 initisd recognition and medisrement

Firancial assets, with the exception of loans and advances to oaiomsers, are irtialy recognised on the trade date,
e, the date 1hag the Company badomes 3 party 10 e contraciual peosidioed of 1R irument, Loard s
advances b0 customers afe recognised when funds e dishursed 10 the customer The dassification of fnandal
Insbrusnesyts at initial recognition depends on thes purpose and characteristics and the management's. itention
whish aoguiring Theim. All fingscial GEee1s ane recognized nmially 38 Tair walod ghas, i thi case o RRancial sty not
reconded at fair vidue theough profit or loss, Erasmaction costs that are stiributable to the scoueiaition of the
financial asset.

1,15,1.2 Cleaification and Subdsquent mesturemaent

For parperias. of submegueent meaturermen, inancial asseis are classified in Iour cnegoras:
Delrt insbnaments ot amortaed coad

Diebit instnaments at fair value through other comprehensive income |FYTOCH])

Dol Inigbiamita Wil bauily InAErumenty 50 e valuin theeugh pralit o o (FUTPL)
Dquity Frtruments mesured ol fair value Ehrough other comprehenshe intome [FYTOCT]

- ¥ ¥ @

3.15.1.3 Debvt ietrusenis 31 amortised costs

A “debd insirument’ B measured ak the amortied coad  iboth the Tol lowing conditians are met:

. Thie assiel 5 bk within & Buingis model whods objecive B 00 B0 assrls for collecting: confrachual sk
Picwarn, arad

" Comrachual bemms of the azeed ghve rhe on speciflied dates to cash fows that are solely payments of prindpal
and isierest [SPP1) on the pringipal amount cestanding.

Afver infial measurement, such Ninandsl assels sre subsequently mesiured o8 amartived oot using the efective
Intevast rate [EIR) method bess impairment. Amortised cost Is caloulabed by taking inlo account sy discount
Of [DRErmisT o ACopasition amd b oF Costs that afe an imopral pan of the EB. The EIR amortisation is included in
Interesl incoese in the wsement of profl ar loss. The o afsing [rom iImpalimen) ae recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.
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1.15.1.4 Dwbt instruments at VOO

A ‘debs invtrument’ B chassilied 2 ot the PYTOC  bath of the followsng criteris ane met:

- Thee objective of the business mode! is achieved both by collecting contractual cash Fows and selling the fnandal
aksls, and

- Tha swet’s contractual conk Poas represent 5P,

Dbt instruments incladed within the FYTOC) categony ane measured initialy as well ay at each reporting date ai
lair walue, Fad wvilue mivementi ife fecoognided |h the otksr compreheniive weame (OC1) Howeesi, the
Compuey recognizes ineresl income, impairment lcases & reversals and forelgn eachange gain or josx in
the PEL On derecognition of the asset, cumalabive gaim or loss pravicssly recognised in OC) s reclassified firom
the eguity 1o PEL. iStered sarhed whitss halding FYVTOC) debe instrament | reportied i Inlerest noome wing the
EIR method,

3.15.1.5 Delt insirusnienis 38 FUTPL

FYTPL is a ressdusl cotegory for debt emfruments.. &ny debd instrument, which does not mest the
critévia Tew cavegorication as 38 anonized Cost o a5 PVTOCL is dassilied a5 a1 FYTPL.

in sddftion, the comaary may clect to designate & debt Patrument, which othensiss mests smortized oost
or FWTOC! criteria, a5 a1 FVTPL Howsver, such election & alloeed only i doing so nedoces of eliminaies a
maasurement of rethpnftion mconiiviency [refermed 1o M "socopning mimasch’), Debil instmaments nciuded
wathin ike FYTPL cabegory are measured ai fair valee with all changes recognized in the PEL

3.15.1.5 Equity Invesiments

Al afuity vl @0 scope of Il AS 109 are mesxiuned w1 Fair vale, Equily iifruments which ane held foar
trading cdassified as at FYTPL For ol other equity insftruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to

present in other comgeehenshe income subsequent changes in the far value. The Cormpany mabes such
sleflion on & insbhempn]-by- indtromaent Bagis. The classilfication is made an initia) resopaition and B inesacahle.

if the company decides o dassify an equity instrument as at FYTOO, then all fair value changes on the
instiuie, sutloding dividendy, are fécognited in the OCL Thiss i no redvcling of the amounts from OG0
to PEL, even on sale of westmenl. Howeyer, the compiey may traenfer the cumwlative gain or loss within
pquity,

Equity inatruments included within the FYTPL category are measured at falr valige with all changes. recognived in
the PEL

1.15.2 Financlal Liabilithes
3.15.2.1 initisd recognition and mesdamment

Financial Babilities ane claslfied and measured at armornised oost or FYTPL A& financial Mability & classified a at
PYTPL il it is clagsilied a5 held-for trading or 1 i drilgnated o5 on wdisl recognition. A9 financial Rabiies are
recognibed inftlally at fair value snd. in the cate of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly sttributable
tranaaction costs.

The company’s finandial labslitiog include 1ragde and cther payvailes, loans dnd Borrowirgs including ask overdralts
and derivative financial instruments.
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3.15.2.2 Classification and Subseguent measurement - Fimangial liabilities a1 fair valse through profit e loss.

Financial labiitses ot Pair valus through profit or joid inciuds financisl Eabilgies held her trading aed
firsancial labilites desigriated upon inftlal recognition 23 o1 fakr wahie through profit o loes. Financial
liakdlithes are chassified as held for trading i they ase incurred for the purpose of repurchading in the near
teirm. This categery also intludes defative finecdial infbhumists enteoed intg by the campany that are not
desiprated as hedging Fstruments in hedge relationships as defined by ind AS 109 Sepsrated embedded
derratives are aleo chasified as held for trading wless they are designated as effective hodping instrumaents.

Gabd o |osses on GabiSties beld foe trading are recogrised in the profit o loss,

Ferandial labilities. desgnated wpon imitla! recognition at Bair value through profit or loss are desigrated 2 such
nmmmﬂwmwmﬂmthmumﬂmMFummwn

FVTPL, fair vk pird) losses aftributabie 1o chaeges i cwn crecd risk are recognited im 001 These gainy
loss are nof sebeeguenily transferred 1o PEL Mowever, the company may tramsler the cumulative gaim or lous
within equity. All ether changes in fair value of such llabiity are recognised in the staiemaent of profit and loss.

3.15.2.3 Loans and bosrowings

Aftes Initia] recognition, inbedest-bearing laans snd borremings ane subieguently massised at smdrtised (ol uiing
the EIR method. Gairs and Iogses e recognised n profit or loss when the kabilties are derecogniced as well as
Ehingugh Eha EIR amerTisalion prodes.

Amartised oot IS caloplatesd by taking intd socouns any dicount of premium on aguition End hees oF covli that
are an inkegral part of the EIRL The ER amortisation b included as finance coasts in the statement of profit and loss.
This extagony pivevally 3ppies (o bosrowings.

31.15.3 Reclaaication of financial svsets arsd Rabilitles.

Thee company doesn’'t medassily its financal assets subseguent to their initial recognition, agart from the
expeptional croemelances in which 1M tompaey acquises, digposed of, o termEnates & Bukineis line,
Flrgnaial Babibtiey are never reclamsified.

1154 Oe recagnition of financial g and Babilities

3.15.4.1 Derecopnition of fenanclal as0ets dise 1o subvtantial modification of terms and cosdithons

The Company derecognises a financie asset, such a5 @ loan 12 a custamer, when the modification of 1erms and
eandBipng hive bien fenegotisted o the anten thal, substacdialy, 8 bifomiy 8 few GBs, wilh the &Femnde
recognived 32 @ devecognition gain or loss, bo the ewtent that an impairment lods Fas not alneady been recorded.
th mosddication does not result in cath Nows that are substantially ditferent, the modfcation does not result in
derecognition, Badsd on 1he change = cash Pows discousied ot the orgingl EW, the Company fecordy &
masdfication gain or loas, bo the extent Ehat an isnpairment loda has not already been recorded.
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3.15.4.2 Derecopnitien of fnsncial 335615 cther than due 1o substantial medification

A finarial wast (or, where applicable, a part of & francal asoet o pan ol a group of similar financial assets)i
derecognived when the fights bo receive cash fows from the financisl adaet hive expined. The Company abo
derecognives the financal seed if it has both transferred the francal asset and the transfer qualdfies for
detecoghnion,

The Company bas bransferred the financlal asset if, and only I, efther;

- The Company has transferred s contrachzal nights o recelve cash flows from the financial asset, or
- nl-ulm'lhrmlmwmﬂmmmwummmhmmmﬂmhmm
maberial delay to @ thind party under a ‘pai-through’ arrengemant,

Pass-Ehrough arrangemsends are transactions whereby the Company retaing the coniractual rights to recelve the
tash Rows of @ fimancial atset (the ‘original ssset’), but assumes a contrachal obilgation to pay those cash flows to
“Hmﬂﬁm‘m'WM'LWIlﬂhmmmei“m

Phat Company hai fd obligatian fo pay amounts 10 The evenlual feciplentt unless it has colected equivaleni
amounty fromn the onginal aveet, exclading dhart-{erm advindes with the right to bl récovery of the amount lent
plus sccrued edenest ot market rates

Thet Compaiy Cannol tall o pladpe thi ariging ausel ofhir Ehan 33 securiny b Eha Seniual rcisents.

-The Loy hin to remni goy cash Nows it colkects on beha ol the evertual mecipienty withoul maberial delay.

In addtion, the Compary & not entitled o reinvest soch caah flows, except for Invesiments in cash oo canh
equivalents iniading interedd earrsd, during the pincd between the colection date and the date of requined
remitiance 1o the eventusl reciplents,

A ranrider ondy quaiifies for derecaga@tion i enher:

+The Compary has tracafered substasdially 3l 1he rivks and rewards of the saet, or

Fhe Commparry has nefiter transfermed nor retained subsiantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but ha
ranaberred contral of the s,

The Campany considers control 1o be transbered i and only &, the traraferes s (ke practical abilty ta sell the
asset in ity entirety o an waelated thind paety and b able 1o exerche that abfiity unflaterally and without nposing
additional restrictions on the iranaier.

Whan The Campany has rthisd Dianiberred mod retained jubstantialy &1 tha fisks and reamidd Gnd Fid Feankhed
cordirol of the asset, the sset continues fo be recogrésed only S0 the extent of the Company's continuing
imvoivement, in which case, the Company a0 recognises an associated lab@ity. The transferred axvet and the
ansncinted liabiity are measured on & hasi 1hat reflect the righta and elbbgations than the Comguny has retained,
Comtbnuing involvermert that takes the form of § guaraniee over the trarferred asset s meswured 3% the lower of
the orginal carrging amount of the asset and the maximum amount of corgaderation the Company ouid be

riquited b pay,

If continuing ireohvemsent takes the Torm of @ written or punchased option (or Both] on the traraferved aaet, the
cotinuing involsement i measured at 1he walue 1 Company would b requined to pay @pon repurchase. In the
case of & written put cption of B0 suiet thel B mesored 88 Ldr value, the extent of 1he entity's continuing
Invedsament i limided to the kower of 1he fair valkoe of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.
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1.15.4.3 Firarclal Labilities

A Fingecial lability s derecognised when the obfigation under the lability i dscharpid. cancelled or expinel. Where
an exbting francal lablity & replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
tevree of am esisting liabiity are subazantially modified, such am eschange or modification s treated a5 a
derecopgation of the ofigingl lakdlity snd the recognition of & new lisbdity, The differerce Between the carrying
value of the criginal financial | labikty and the coraideration paid i recognised In profit ar loss.

116 impairment of firancial assets.

3.16.1 Overdew ol the ECL principles

Thie Comginy I8 recording the allowance for expacted credi |osses feer all kaans and other debt financial siaets not
hetd a8 FYTPL together with loan commitments and feancal guaramtes contracts, [ tha section all
referned b0 as “Tinaessial insirurseney’ | Bguity Fairumants 0 nob Lebseet 1o irpairment weder IND AS 106G,

The ECL alicevancn 15 Based on the credil houses expected £ arte over the lie of the asset (Che [ietiee eipeched
credit bss or LTECL], unless There hid been ro significant increads in credit risk séinge arigination, in which cine, the
alcrance b based on the 12 mondhs' expected credit loss (12mECL) .

The 33mECL i the portiom of LTECLS that repeesent the ECLs that rewult from default evesis on a fmancial
Instgment thet ané podsible withens the 13 manthd after the reporting date.

Both LTOCLs and 12mECLy are caboulsted on colecthe b

The Company has esisbished a policy fo perform an assessment, af the end of each reporting period, of
whether a financial instramenmt’s oredit risk hat increased significantly since initlal recognition this is further
Explaingd n Mot 407,

Based on the above process, the Compary groups it ioans into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3, as described below:

Stage 1: When lpans are fint recognised, the Company recognises 0 afowance based on 13mI00s. Stage 1 losm
akun inciade Facfities where thee credit risk has improved and the inan has been reclassified from Stage 7 or Stage 3.

Stage 2 When a loan has shown a sipnificant imorease In credt risk sinoe ongination, the compgany
recondy an alleance for the LTECLS. Stage 7 loans aho include faclithes, whare thit credit rivk han improved and
the izan has been reclinaifed froe Stage

Stage 3¢ Losh considensd cred-imgained [as outhesd @ Mote 7). The Company recondi aa aldowance for the
LTECL:

For finantisl assets for which the company his no reasonable sxpectations of recovering eithar the eeting
outstanding amounl, or 8 propoction theresd, the gross carrping amoged af the fingncial it is redyced. Thin iy
coraidered & [partial) derecognition of the financial asset.

1.16.3 The calculation af £Cla

The Company calodates ECLS Bdsed on a probablliiby-weighted senafios and hitorical dits to measure the
pxpecied cash sheetfally, discounted at an approsimation to the EIR. A& cash aksortfall s the difference between the
cash fiores That ang doe 10 3 entily s Eeondance with the cosiracl and the cash ficras That Ui ALY ERPRCLE 1D
regee,
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Thie mechankcs of the ECL caloslatsors are owtlined below and the ey elements are, a3 follows:

Probabality of Deleult (PD) - The Probabiiny of Delau s an estimate of the likslinood of delaull over 3 given time
hericon. A delault may only happen af @ certain time ower the ssasssed peiod, i the Tecilty has ot bees
previousty derecognived and is still in the partfalio.

* Exposure 81 Default (EAD] - The Exposure af [edaa® i an capodre o1 & defau® date.

« Lods Ghven Defseh (LGD) - The Lovs Gven Deligdt is 8n elimate of the loss arising in the ase whene & default
ooours at a given tine. it is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the
lender would swpect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is wually expresced 25 a
percentage af e EAD

The masimum period for which the oredit iodies ane deterrmired |8 1Re cpecied Be of & francial ssirument,

The mechanics ol the ECL meethod) ane jumemadfised belidn:

Stage 1: The 13mECL is calculated as the portion of LFECLS that represent the BCLS that result from defau’t events
of a enuncial insbhament that s podaible within the 1T monthy alter 16 reporting dite. The Company caloulatin
the 1XmECL allowarnce based on the sdpectaiion of a dedawa® occurring in the 12 months following the repoiting
date. These supected 12 month defau® probabéites are applied to 2 EAD and midtiglied by the exapected LED .

Stage 1= When 3 losn has shown a sign¥icesl morease in oredit fsk since origeation, the Company
reconds an allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those esglained abose, but FOs and LGDs are
eflirmated ever the [Hetims of the Sirumant,

Stage ¥ For loani condidered credit-mpaired (8 outlined in Mole 7). the Compeny recognibes the liletime
expaecied credi losses for these bana. The method is simBar to that for Stage 2 assots, with the P set at 1000,

31.16.3 Fowwrard looking information

While egimating thi: sxpectid gredi lpsses, the Company meviss matrg-Soahomic developmenti eoourting in the
econorry and market it operates in. O a periodic bash, the Compary anabses if theve |5 sy relationship between
by economic trends. lie GOP, unemploymient rates, benchmark rabes set by the Bewerve Bank of India, infation
e, with the estimate of PD, LGD determined By the Company baied on @ inteiral data Wedle the imernal
estirmates of PO, LGD rates by the Company may nof be abwayrs reflectes of such relationships, temnporary overlay,
il amy, are embedded in the mathodology to reflect such macro-ecomomic frends reasonably.

3.16.4 Collateral repossessed
Thie corepary’s policy is o sell repoteeated assat. Non fisancial assel repoissssed are Dransferred 0o st Beid for
wale at Eair value leds coal 19 sel| o principsl cefstarsding, whicheyes i b, gt repossession dste,
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1.16.5 Write-ofis.

Fisancial assets ane writen off eaher parially or @ thew enlirely only whin the Compaey has sDopped
pursuing the recowery. If the amoont 16 be written off i greater thin the scosmulsied fod sliowende, the
difference 5 first treated as an add®ion to the allowanoe that b8 then appled against the pross carrying
m.WWWIqupﬁﬂtﬂhﬂm.

217 Fair valoe mesurement
This Company maasures finensial invprurmsests a1 Tair valoe at gach balasoe shiet date utieg valuation technigues,

Fair walue & ithe price that woold be recelved bo se? an assef or paid to bransfer a ¥abilty In an orderly
HMHMMWFH1HWW-IHh"WWWHWMW
presumption that the tranisctics ko sl the sisel of tranalfer the Aabiity tilkey place eilker;

= im Ehe principal market for the 2332t or Habiity, or

- I thir abence of 2 principal market, i the most advastapeccs marke Tor the asset or lability.

Thip putincigal of the mosl advastapecs mirkel must be acosaibie by the Company,

Thee fair walue of an asset or a Mabiity & meassred wsing the assmptions that market participants would e when
priging this gaist or Rabiity, stduming thal markel participaali Bt in thish seonaemis Bt ilareil

A ok wahse measurement of & non-fingecial asset Eakiy into acoount o market participant™ abilty 1o generate
eronomic benefits by using the asset in ity highest and best wse or by seiling it fo another marfiet panticipant that
v b Thas asart i ivt PBighest and best wis.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are approgriate in the circumstances and for which sefficent
datd o svidable 19 Meknaie Y viiue, madmsing the use of relivant abseraable Bl snd msdmsing the uke
of wrsobienatle inputs.
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Muodes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 01
{4 avmaced in WR Locs, dnargd for shane darg unlees staned athevnivig]

Al anoets and llabficies for whvich fair walue s measured or disclased in the Bruncal talemests are cabegortsed
within The lair value hierarchy, described o folkows, baded on the iowest level inpul that b significant to the fair
value meavurermen] a5 3 whle:

= Lewel 1 — Ouoted |unadjustesd] market prices in active markets for identical assets or labilibes.

- Levil 3 — Vahuation technigquis or shich the bweest leved Input that & significant 1o the e valus measunemsnt 4
directly af indirectly otmervabe,

- Level 3 — Valuation bechnigues for which the lrweit level input That & dgnificant to the B vilue mesurerent b
uncbasnable.

Far assety and Mabildies that are recognised im0 the financial staterments om @ recurring basi, the Company
determanes whether tracnden have ocowred beteeeen levels in the hierarchy by re-asuesaing categorisation {based
o thi lerwmat bmeed input that i dgnificant bo 1Rl vadue Mauremenl &5 4 whols] a1 the end of asth eeamming
pariod.

518 DHvidend

Thiz Company recogrides a labslity to make cash distributions bo equity holders when the distribution & authorbed
and 1 distribanion i no loeger a1 the discretion of the Company, Final dividends on shares e reconded as a
liakslity 6n the date of sporoval by the sharehaiders snd termn dividends are recorded o @ lisbilty on the date of
declaration bty the Compamy's Board of Dvectors.

3.19 Tranafer Pricing

Tha Comgany ha esiablibed 3 comprehernsn system for maintenancs of informaticen and doruments a5 requined
by 1 Riledder piicing laghlation ahdel Setaes BE-00F of the Wome Tas Al 19561, The Campatny éndires that [
tramactions ane at s length w0 that the aficresaid legishation do not hawve any impact on the finandal
statements, partecutarky on the amosnt of ta expense and that of provisicn for taation

3. 20 Inwestment in Sulbkdlarhes

Imemant i eotriadiaries is recogned at gost and are pot adjusted (o fair vake at the end of each FepoTing
perksd, {ost of mvestment represests amount pald for scqubdion of the s invesiment, The Compasty psseiied at
the end of each reporting period, if there are any indicatiors that the sakd irvestment may be impaired. f s, the
Compary @stimalis 1he récowveraleg value/amount of the imsstment and proides Bor impainment, § any e, the
deficit @ the recovmraliie value aver cost

3.21 Leases

Measurement of Lesde Liabiliey

A1 the time of initial recoprition, the Company measures lease Babiity s preseot walee of all leae payment
discoumied using the Company™s incremental coat ol borroaing fate. Subsequenty, the ipae Hablity =

[0 rereased by interest on lease lisbikty; and

[} Badhace by kease payment mache;

Measurement of Bight-ol-Use aivet

At the tme of inftial recognition, the: Company measures Right-of-Use assets’ which comgeises of amssunt of inftial
recognition of lease lability, initial direct cost and cost of demantling and restoration . Subeeguently, ‘Right-of-Use
assets’ |5 measured using cost modsl Le, M conl less any securruilated deprezition and any stcursaiated
impairment losses adiusted Tor @y re-measuremend of the lease Nabiigy specified in ind A5 116 ‘Leasesy”

Depreciation on Right-of-Use a53ets’ s prowided on straight tine basis over the lease percd.

e
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Mobes to Scarsdalione Financial Siabesnerns Tor the vear ended 31 Maach 201
AN avrount i (N Locs, excepr for shore dofe weless Sofed oheraise]

&, Sigreficand socounting judpemants, extimates and assumpsions

4.1 Business model aEsEsment

Classification and measurement of indfoial Jaset digands on thl Fesuls of thi SPP1 and the BUsifis Sl
esE. The Company detenmines the Business model at 3 kesel thal relecs hoe inancial aasets of the Company
aw managed logethiy 10 achieve a paniculas busines objective. This asserment inchudes judgeenent
MHHMMMMNWHWMHWHMW
mirasured, the risks that afent the performance of the aseets and how these are managed and how the
maragers of the assets ane compentated. The Cosmpany mondoors Sinancial apsets measured 3t amortned Cost
o Bair v ThiDUER oo COMprifns i moDme that we derslognised pror 1 thlr oty 1o wedersand
‘thae neason for thelr dispoeal and whethar the reasons are consistent with the objoctise of the busiess Tor
which the anset wan held. Monitonng & part of the Company’s cominuous assesement of whether the business
maodel for which the resraining finsmcal asseis are held continues to be appropriate and # & & not appropeiate
whather there kas been a change in busicess model and 3o a proapective change o Bhe dass#ication of thaose
L.

AT Fair valige of fisancial instnaments

Thie fair wakee of francia) insbrumenis & the price tat would be recefved 1o el an asset or pad to tremader a
kabdity a0 orderly fransaction i the principal jor most advantigesen] market at the messrement daie
under current market conditions (e, an exit price) regardiess of wihether that prioe B directly phaenatde or
elimated using srother walsation technigue. When the fair vakees of financia! assets and firancil babivtes
recorded in the Balince sheet cémod be derved Brom active markets, They are defermined using a wrkety of
wakation techaiques thal include the e of vakution models. The inguts 1o these model ae taken from
obiervable markets where podaihle, but where this i not feible, estimation is required in establivhing far
wiikesed, hudgiments ind stimited nchide cordderitiond of |iguidity iad model inputs riddbed 1o bermd fuch i3
et rivk btk own and courdeparty], correlation End volatiity,

A5 Dfiective nterest Rate [L1R) method

The company's [0 methodology. recognies nterpd! ncome [ sapenie uiing a rige of return that repreents
thar Bt edtimage af @ cofvtan] e of refurm dver the sgected belavdoural (e of lganm ghen | borrowings
Taken pred rispogrisis Thi effect of potentialy differin Fherest riliG 58 wisinn ages and olbsr CharieTerstcs
ol the proiudt ke oytle (RCuding ofepiymests and persally ntioedl and charges]. Thii estmalion, by falung,
fequings an slament of judgement Fegarding 1he expecied Brhavicar and We-Cycle al the nstruments, 35 vwell
npitid Changed 30 dias Bake rate and Sthed Fee inComafiapetis 1hal ane Stigral pars of D irifumit].

A4 impalrment ioda on financlal aiset

The maguremed of impsirmest koides acrois all caiogories of fmancial susets requires judpement, in
partigdan, the edtimstion of Ehe dmount @od timing of fubare cash Fows snd colateral values when
deter=ining Imparmest losiel Snd she daiesamen of § dgaficant meceae in tredt rik, These eimstes ee
driven by & numbaer of FBctar, changes n which £8n rew in different level of slowances,

The comgany's ECL calculasions are sutpuls of complin models with a number ol urderlying saumplions
regarding the choe of varabls inputs and heir rtefdependencios. Elemems of the EQL mbdefs that are
considerad accoonting judgements and evlimates include:

« Th Compasyys inbevnal model, which aagiges POL,

= Thiz Comparny's oriteria bor assessing if thene Pas been a significan intrease in credE rak and £0 allowanies
for firancial aasets should b measured on a LTECL basks and the gua btathe assessment.
-mmmmwmm:nummammum

« Desriopment of ECL modeks, including the various feemulas and the chaoios of inputs.

+ Determimation of associations bebween macroeconomic soevarios and, coonomikc  npuis, wsch as
unesrgdoyrment levels and collateral values, and the efect on F3s, EADs and LGOS,

- Selection of forwand-looking macroesconomic wenanios and thelr probabiiy weightings, to derbee the
Eoonomic npuis into the FOL modets.

+ Recogrition of the potential impact of COVID-19 in the Company’s collective provision a8 outhned in Mobe 7

it b Been the Compary’s palicy ta regulirky riview it3 model 5 the context of schual ks axperence and
sl wihirs AeCEELry,
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(AN avroun (i W Locs, excepl for shore oote weless soned ofheraise)

&% Defired employes benelit assets and babilities

Thae coat of the delined benelit grateity plan and other post-employmens berefits and the present value of the
Eratuity chligation sre determined using actuadial valaabions. An sctuanal valuation insobaes making warious
avampiions that may differ from actual developmends in the futwre. Thete ndude the desormination of the
dicoun rate, fure by ecalations and morakty rdtes. Due 10 the complexites Frvolved i the waluation
ared iy long-term nature, & defired benelit obigation B highty seraitse 10 chinges in (hese assumpiions. Al
uarpkions are reviewed 28 each meporting dade.

&5 Shars based pawments.

Exibmating Tak vakse Tfor share-based payment irsreactions regueres determbnaton of the most approgiaie
wakation model, which b dependent on the teyma and corafitions of the grant. This estimade 3ls0 requires
determination of the most aoproprate inputs to the vabaation mode! including the expecied e of the share
option, volatdity and desdend yeid and maiing sunsrgtions about them.

4.7 Provislons. snd ether continges lablifties

The Compary ogpserdied in & regulibory and fegil emvironment That, by nadune, his & heighbered sement of
Eeigation riik inhevent bo ik operafiond. AS & result, | 1 invelved & vicioes IRigaton, Ebitration and regulibon
Fredtligations snd procesdings in the ordinary course of 18 Compary’s Bapingesy,

Whin The Company can neilably measuns the cutlow of eConomic Benelins im relaton 1o @ Specila case and
considers uch cutlions 1o be probable, the Compaey Feconds 3 prossaion against the coe Whiss the
probabibty ol outfiow & corsidided 1o b remote, or Pobable, but & feliable estimabe cannot be made, a
contingen abdity is disciosed.

iSnern the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and ssmoung of losses, the Dompany takies
iFAD account a number of factors including legal adwice, the stage of the matier and historical evidence from
mmmmwummmmmmmm

LE A0

The Company svakabes i an srargement quaifies o be a lease as per the requirements. of el AS 116.
Igeraification of o lease reguines significe jedgment. The Compary aves Hgnificant judgement in asseming the
lease i [inchuding sviicipated renewalsl and the applicable discount raie. The Compawy deiemmines the
lease b as the ron-canoel lable period of a leawe, topether with both periods covered by a0 opfion o extend
1R ke © she Company B reasonably certain to exercise thed opftion; and periods covered by an optian to
termingte Ehe leade i Bhe Company B resscnably cerain nod b exenche thet option. In iddessing whether the
Compary is resongbly certen S0 exerche an option o extend § eae, o not o exencie a0 opticn &0
termingte o pee, € considers 8l neleven Bicty Bnd crcumstances that creste an edonomis infemtive for the
Comply bo eerdise the option b5 extend the ledis, o fol b ecerdise the opbicn B lermrate the base. The
Compary revisey (e legde tonm if thene is & change in the non-cancelable period of 4 lease, The dissount rate
i genialy bised on the incrémantal bormwing rate specilic b0 1he lease being evifusted or for 8 pontfelio of
eaiim with dirnilef chirsstpreiey.

5, Stansdard fised but Aot vl elfective
mﬂmﬂfﬂ! [TWICAT) not®es nisw Slandad oF amendments [0 e exsling siendards. Thene i
na wach notfcaton which would Fave been applicabie Troen Apeil 01, 2001,
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al gmownt in INR lecs, except for share doto unless stated otherwise)

T AL &t
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Mote 64: Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks in current accounts 5,323 TE6
In deposits with original maturity of less than three months 950 11,807
6,273 12,573
Mote 68: Bank balance ather than above
Earmarked balances with bank® BAT2 1,021
8472 1,021
Total 14,745 13,554

® Fixed deposits accounts with bank are held under lien. The Company has the complete beneficial interest on
the incorme earned fram these deposits,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash eguivalents comprise the following:

s at s at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Balance with banks in current accounts
- Reserve Bank of India : -
- Schedules Banks 5,323 TEE
In Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 950 11807
5,273 573

Yot
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Clis Capital Sensici Privato Limibed
Motes b Mardslone Financial Sastemests bor the year ended 21 March 2021
(A amgun! i KR Llacy, sagept for thare data undess 1ated atherwise]

s Asan
31 Margh 2021 31 March 2030

Mobe T; Leany

i s

AF Amortised cost
Taren lasni J66, T4l 300231
Finance [ease redcsivables 64 M
e goerepanry loain 35,500 -
Toaad [B] Geoss 302,305 3060, 25T
Lets: Impairmend ioss lowance 14,373 BG50
Tean| [A] Kt 88,033 203,641
Seruned™™ 154,435 130414
Lisaeguredi 157 858 =N LH]
Tista! (8] Cireria 302,305 500 207
Le: imparment ks alswancs 14,272 6,656
Tota! (K] Net 88,013 UL
Lioas in beadia
Pablic pector - -
Otheey 302,305 30T
Teaal [C) Grods 302,305 3060, 297
Lets: impairmend loss alowance 14,272 b, 556
Total () Net 2RECS 293,641

* Flrance lease recetvable inghades receivables from relrled parties as at 31 Manch D331 INA & (11 Maech 1000 INE PE].

== serungd by 1angile susets [hypotheration ol eguipment's, plant and macsinery, equilable morigage of immovable peopery, phedps of securites, trade
recefvabiey, e ) Ao seowred lnans inclugdes loan syt s=oynting to 188 6,121 which are ahio backed By guarantee by pevernment ungder various

[0,

# irartwred lopns includss kaan st ascunting e KR 10634 which aie lio Bathed by pearantie by poverirmeint under vangus ichamel
[ Lot e recesabbes e non-derhaatiee fingecad ssets which genersie a foed o varlable et ncome for the Company. Tha carndng vales may

be affected by changes in the credit sk of the counterparsies,

ffposcte—
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Muotes to Mardalone Financial Sastemests for the year ended 21 March 2021
(8 amgunt i IR Lascy, except for thare dats undess ated athawise]

(4} France beags recerable
Wehides gasen under fingnce lease Bave been recogresed 45 receivabies 3 o amound egea’ 1o the nel investmest in eae. Recssciliation betesen the
bolsl grow inveadment in lpgie ansd the peelen] valys of minimym leee paymends receivable a5 ot 31 Maech 3081 andl 51 Maech 3033 iy o follows:

e st A
51 March 2031 33 March 2000
Presemt walue of minimum lease paymeris receivable 55 T
Addt Unguarantesd redidusl walum storuing 1o the benshit ol the el ] [
At Usaarriid TiRARER MBOME 14 ]
Greid Imreflesint in nands lease E E
The matwiny profie of the Nnance ease receraisles ok @ 31 Manch 2001 and 31 Mancs M0 & a6 Tolows:
ALt T Ml 3001 A5 30 31 Marek DO
‘Minimum Lirsranmed Peeseed  Minimum  Unearned Prasent
ledse Tinaes b ledse Anafde il
PIERRE nrama PayERAE Inromee
Hiecrivable within one year pL ¥ fi] 50 4 A
Retidvabile bitwisen 1-5 ylies 40 7 13 34 4 E i)
Total i 14 (2] B4 [ 76

During the year, an amount of MR E was recogniied a5 income in the stanemeent of profit s koas (31 March 2020 : INFR 12).

[} Transtes of Finkscial assets

Tririfer of Bnanciil Sdset that ire nol devecogeiied in their erticety

Thie Comgpany wies Wourtnation ok o sounss of fisante. Such transetions general iy feult s R transled of costraciual caik Rows lrem pertfelion of
Frnanaial sdels 1 hoiders of imsied debt securithed. Serunibsanan has resoted @ the contimied recopstaon of the seourithed Jasees.

Thie Labike below athnes the canngng armounts: sod Tar values of all Bnaroa) seets iranslered thai ave not derecognssed In their
entirety and ancciated lahities

Leans and advinces measuned 8 amarlised coat At 31 March 2031 As at 31 Masch D20
Cairging amoufl ol anered JAEm Mamured 10 Jmrtised 30,062 11421
e 14

Carrying amoun of Jssocianed iabisres 33,737 10,205

The camrying, amount of shove st wed Babilnies b 8 reasoeable approaimaron of Bair valee.

Transhers of Faancial aasets that are derecognised in thels entirety

During e yoar anded March 11, 383, the Company han sold some loans and sdvanses measured at amcrtised cost 8 per malpement deali, i 8 souce
of Baasoe. As per Th teeme of Theds Seald, S0 wibiraninl mk and feastdy Felaned 10 thise 3550 wiee Translemed 1o Dh beryer, The ilsr Riree Bein
derecognised Irom the Compasy™s balssoe dhart

The management ha evshusied the impacd of assgrement tranasction done dering the yea Tor ity beainess model. Baed on the future bainess plan, the
company Busieus model remains o hold Bhe aasets for collecting contractual cash fowi

The carnging amcant of the derecogaised financlal assets measured 88 amortived oottt as on dade of transfer during year i5 INR 11848 [Previous year
S,009) desrathon receieed Tor such transhes i |RE L144R (Previcu year: 3000 respeciieely.
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AN avngwal i W Tacs, excent fov ihane Jarg uniesd shaled apharmis)

Maote 7.2 impalrment assessmeent
Theer eederencos below show whae the Company’s impairment assessment ard measurement appreach is 581 cut in these notes, 1t
shou'd be read in conjunction wath the Summary of significant accounting, policies,

- Defimition of default and cure

Thee Company considers 3 financial instrumend as defaulted and classdfies it as Stage 3 (cred@-impaared) for ECL caloulations typically
when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on contractual payments. The Company may also classify a loan in Stage 3 i there i
sigrificant deteraration in the losn collateral, detericration in the financi condithon of the bamrower or an assetsmeent that adwere
markel conditions may have 8 deproportonately detrimental effect on the een repayment. Thus, a3 & part of the oua@ative
assessment of whether an instrument i in default, the Company also considers a variety of instances that may indicate delay
FEpayTENL O man repayment of the loan When such events otour, the Company carsdully considers whather the swem thould
FESIT in Treating the borrower a5 difauliied and theredore assessed a5 S9age 3 for ECL caloufations or whethser Stage 7 i apgrapriate,
Clagsilicatsan of accousis Bito stage 2 v done on @ condervalive basis and typically accounts whens CONTCtual TepayTRnLE Are MOne
than 30 days past due are classified in stage 3.

it is the Company's policy to corsider & fimencial instrument a8 ‘tured’ and therefore re-cladsifed out of Stage 3 when none of the
default oriteria are present. The decision whether to dassify an pseel a5 Stage I or Stage 1 once cured depends on the updsed
cridit grade ance the seoourt is cured, and whether this indicates there ks been a sgnificant reduction in credit risk,

= Probability of defauit
Tt credin rating provided by the extermal rating agenciesfactount level delinguency)’ incernal matrix has bewn consideded while
assgning Probabiling of Delac (PD) a1 a pantolie level, The FDS ane compenied Tor homagencas ponigio segmonis.,

« Empaosure at default
Thee outstanding balance a5 a1 the reporting date & considered s EAD bry the Company. Considering that PD determined abone
Ectors im amount 31 defawt, there i3 no teparate requatement bo aatimats EAD

= Loss ghven default

The Groug uses kisporical loas datafemaeral ageady LGD for ideriified hamagenous peals or the purpece of caloulating LGD, The
estimated recovery cash Thows are discounted such that the LGD calouation factors in the NPV of the reoeries,

= Slgndficant increase in credit risk
Thee Compary evaluates the leans on an angeing basis, The Company alse assesses i there had been a significant increase in cnesdit
risk since the previcussy risk taking info corsideration both qualitathe and quantitative information . One key factor that indicates
significant incroase in crodit rick is when contractual payments are mone than 30 days past due or where saisting terms ane
remegotiated.

If pecordane wilh BB guidelings relating 10 CaviD-19 Regulaiory Package dated I7 March 2000 ard 17 Aprid 2030, the Comgany
s granted moratoum of upte three mosts on the paymsent of a1l irstalmemts Talling due batween 1 March 3020 1o 31 May 2020
i all ¢ligibde borrowers who have reguested for the moratoriem. The RBI via press relsase dated May 22, 2020 has permitted
lgnding imstitutions to extend the morstosium by another thnee monthd, L., from June 1, 2020 to August 31, 2000, The Company
provided the option of svtending be prowiding option for extending the moraborium 10 it elgible borrowers” basks its approwed
beoard policy. For all such acoounts where the moratorium & granted, the prudential assets dassification and stage movemsent has
beesen kept on stand still during the moratorium period. A3 per |CA] guidance, the moratoriem granted to eligible borrower is (kself
rat corsidered to result in a significant increase in credia risk.

- Grouping financlal assets
Ther Company calculates ECLs on Retall Porsfolio at an obkgor level whilst PD rates are applied on collective basis and corporate
partiolio on indevidual basks.
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Maote 7.3 Collateral

The matare of products acroes these broad cxlegores are efther wnsecured or secaned by collateral. Athough collsteral is an
important risk mitigant of oredit rivk, 1he Company’s practice is o lend on the bass of assessment af the customer's sbility to repay
Father Ehan placing primary reliance on fola%eral, Bated on the nature of product &hd the Compary’s aiiedtimenl al 1he fudtimsery
onisdit ridk, 4 lean may be offered with suitable calleral,

The Company hakd calaeral 1o maigave oredi rivk asseciabed with secuned financial assets. The main Type al coliateral and type of
assets these are associated with are listed in the (abie bolow, The collateral presented relates 1o instrements that are measured at
amortised cost,

Asat Asat
Mature ef Callateral 31 March | 31 March
FLiral 2030

Corparata-

Equity shanes of the Company, personal guarantos of §
director / promoder, charge against land and bullding and
collaterals such as fived assets, debiors, etc.

47,593 52,681

Retall -

Cars &4 Ta
Two whesher 5, 7EG 15,855
Health care equipment 5.312 .
Property 51,675 51,761
[Total 114,436 | 130,414

The Campany pericaically msonitors e market value of collaberd’ and evalawe it expocune and lpan 1o value metracs for high risk
cusiomers, The Company exercises its right of repessession aonoss all secured products but primarily inits two whesler and user cing
financing business. It alse resorts fo invoking its right under the SARFAES Act and cther judicial remedies available against its
mortgages and commercial landing buseness. For its conporate Moans whane collaterad is shanes, the Company recoups shanifall @
valuit of shares through paet recall of loars or additional shares from the customer, or sale of underhing shares.

The compary did not hold any financial instrument for which no fous allowance |s recognised because of collateral at 31 March 2021
ard 31 March 2020. There was no change in the Company's collateral palicy or collateral quakty dusirg the period.

Refer Mote 40.2.2 for nsk concendration based on “Industry anaiysin® for corporate portfolio and “Sub portfolio’s and
Securedfunsecured” Tor retail porifalio.

7.4 - Risk assessment mods

The Company has devigned and opergeds il risk sssessmen] model that Factors in both quantitative a5 well &% gua@ative
infgrmation on the laans and the borroweri, Dependirg on the nature of the product, the magde| uses Moo empirical dats 19
arrive ot factons (hal are indicative of Tutune credit risk and segmaents 1he porthalia on iBe basis of combinations of (kese parametens
imMo smaller hamegenous portfokas from the perspective of cred Behavior,

7.5 - Impact of COVID-19

COVID-19 15 a ghobal pandemas, which continues 10 dpread acnass the world with India nat being an excegitian and has confributed 10
a sgrdficast wolmilicy in global amd indian fnanciad markets and a unprecedent level of Genoption on SOCR-SCONOMIC ACtvities,
Based on the indormation available i date, the Compary has used the principles of prudence to provide Tor the mpact of the
pandemic on thee Finangial Statements specifically while assessing the espected oredit ioss on financial assets. This has esulted in an
caerall impairement loss alowance of MR 14,272 (induding Management cverlay) as of Masch 31, 2021, The extent fo which the
COWID-19 pandemic will impact the Company’s operations and financial metrics including the oxpected credit losses on financial
assets will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain.

Hoscde—
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Clix Capital Serwices Private Limited

Notes to Standalone Finandial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Al amount fn INR facs, except for share dato unless stoted othemse)

A% @t As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Mote 118: Right-of-use assets
Opening balance of Right-of-use assots BE4 -
Agdd: Additions to right-of-use assets during the year 715 1,072
Less: Depreciation on Right-of-use assets during the year [354] {403)
Closing balance of Right-of-use assets 1,030 665
As at A% at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Mote 11C: Lease lkabilitkes
Opening balance of lease liability T15 =
A Additions 1o lease Hability during the year 715 1,073
Add: Interest cost charged during the year 115 98
Liess: Lease rentals paid during the year (2771 {456)
Closing balance of Lease labiiities 1,267 715
Az at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Mote 12: Other non-financial assets
Prepald expensas Log 330
Minimum aliernate tax recoverable 2053 1573
fdvance to supplicrs 124 346
Less: Provision {7 -
117 346
Balance with statutory and government authaorities
- Considered gaod il 444
- Comidered doubtful T 916
Less: Provision [562) {3186)
Fii ] 444
Lease rental equilisation receivable 1 -
Fair value of plan assets of gratuity - s
Total 2,932 2,695
AS at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Note 13: Payables
Trade payables 5,606 535
Other payables 2.304 2,580
Total 1,970 3,115

s




IO Capital Sarvaces Private Limited
Mot b Seimdilond Financial Satesenta Tor the year anded 31 Mafch 2001
A BvRaUnT ia TN docs, Feeead flor shase dova onless sioved ofwenwie)

Ad Ad

Wots 14 Debt Securities

¥1 March P08 31 Manch 1020

A Armesrtied Cost
Saevured
Mon-oorsertitde debeneres §
- From Bask 31029 -
- From Dther partles 555 2851
Uisigubed
M iw el ex
- Fram Dfhet parkey L] .28
Total gross (A 127,584 139,373
Dbt securithe in Indis 127,384 129379
Total () to taly with ja] 127, 4 139,178
¥ NCD B vecuned by Tirid pari passu and continuing chatge on sl curent snd future slandard ook debts/ receivables
ol the company,
1 Men—covertible debenbares 31 ot 11 March 2020 are at par as follows:
Due withdn 1 Micarg than 3
Original matwrity of NEDs {in no. of day) yrar Duoe 1 te 3 ywars  Oue 1 to § years wEars Totsl
lssuesd o1 par and redesmable at par - -
Jis -1 22,500 10 630 - 1120
T3 - 1 000 - 4,500 - B4, 500
106G - 1460 L] - - u 101,000
e Ehan 1860 - - 500, 01 - 0000
LETE20
- Infmrest rafe renges fnem 9. 109% poa, 10 1L65% poa. as at 31 March 2021
lm'ﬂwﬂﬂilmmﬂwnﬂﬂm
Dot st 1 Rellzarr than 3
Diriginal matuity of NED {in na, of digs) yEar Dwe1te?years DusZ i3 years wEar Tatal
lieued B par and edeemalle i pa " 3 : 5
255 -730 19800 . 18,500
731 - 1095 . 30,000 10,000 0000
10696« 1460 . 20,000 . . B0L.000
More thas 1850 - 0,000 0000
115 84)

- IngEvegl Fale Fleges B 10000 Pua, oo 10509 pon i ot 31 Mol 300

gﬁ_____j_i-_'__._-"




Cevlemaw Herraa Paemy Lememd
Ssbr i bl Flausiia ‘Ll s Ve e’ imiked 12 ey SO0
|AF g b el g, £ i WY daia ey Foed pieee)

LT i w

BiMeshor] OEMawhi0e

Bt e L f il Pl
Eopiat (B b w2

Aol spapreeel OF Lee Wusn ool 11 Rasih pFi

1w

w

i

[FINE ]

Bortwergn o ks FEERE ]
IR

ST S £l Yool
[T
ey L8 . i, of ey
b L p o T b L [EL) - - - - i [5T]
hairtnsy | oparyrad] o hoduie ] LR (0] AL ] RLR T LB LB
HAF 85 Tl | R & 100 1 p - - [ E
e L %] o — CI—
- inmerwad raip reges from RN g s o1 pa e sk K R BT
T gl tepayreesi of Borrowanyy meyiesing gy ol 1] B B0
T it L B [T =8 Todul
Arparyrare N of il raeeh Armeurd No ofedamesh S N, of vyl ey -"! - Aremarri
Oartaesy repdymrens whaduy 7] HUETE (5] L, ] [T 3% TLDH
Hal 7 3% il ST ] LI L] LE s ] T f L] FERG )
dr cha wred of ey ¥ L0 - = - - 1 11
s L B I BARHY 2 LA . 1L

— O



Cow Lapitw Frreany Powpy (e
Ssbr i bl Flausiiin ‘Ll s e e’ imiked 12 Bhaegie SO0
AN i b el o, CEOTPT ot W dfad @l Eored D

= T bl 4 Werrd By YW I puil chavge o dll parenr s Feterr o d beed debiuneeivase of 1R BT Paltaden o iR Tele i, ek o PeTaaedine B, B 0 SReEuTeE T AATRET oy
i el | il o ey 1y e e S P

=5 R Cuopieall 5 g s iPuige e el o e el i dhred st e ke (4 e s s e by (] ey renofaie, P e rearnrkin gpurd o ey ey lnesh e @l g
[EFREFWFL O VAP o eliahety el o s ory fapoad reso mewrtTes of i bt rowewr b el 1T e

0 That iy M TR e, o Br B Fruid e GRIERRE 56 0 i B D R Drd ot Pt 0. Tk ot 1 S I, 4 | Al Dy Wla'iiily il LU Lfesting PRt O FSETY

wthw e ] ol 3 in Y ey ankb the wearen rempr o |V 50 16 5% The el ol i A @i Syt sk g by Tha ol ] reerereeae e pagree, nlseures of
i of e pd e
Faniu e T .
N ek JEOL 13 Wi I
e T [ jun
i Bty i raleded s 1] nth
Frrves] pabar b pary = L

Tip margery il ol the feae:w b cbigeeae m o 0] Mar®y 30| e 51 Warrh 30000 e S

e oyt B Mer® ML

Foricoy Wi L
B wakan

Fapabin wrien | grE [T] ™
Pyl lnrtarvan § % i T an
e ] =
bl
Fharw iy dorw = e




Clin Capltal Services Private Limited
Hotes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al amourt im INR lacs, except for share dote wniess sheted otherwise]

Az ot As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

MWote 16: Other financial liakilities

Irberest aconued but net dues
= On term boan and ron convertible debandure from bank 1,507 313
= O e lan ahd mon cehvertile debenturs fram athar Institution 153 &7

= On Securitized boerosings 117 43

Employpee benalits payable 6315 305

Capital ereditars 258 Il

Advanies IFom cusionmes 2,977 El1

Intercempany Payable - 17

Security deposits from customers 523 45
Total &, 180 2,351

Az at A at
31 March 2021 31 March 3020
Mote 17: Provisions
Pravision Tor employes benelits
- Compersated abserces |Refer Mote 11) 148 144
- Gratuity [Refer Note 31} 5
Pravision for contingent expenses [Refer Note 24)

- Pravision Tor éndirect tax 1,119 1,070
Proviston Tor customer disputes [ Refer Mote 34) 10 10
Provisios lar C5R Expenses 18 -
Total IIE IIE

Az at s g
¥1 March 2031 ¥l March 2020

Mote 18: Other nen-financial liabilities

Statubory dses payable 526 B0
Cithvers 117 -
Tokal [ E] 00

Yl
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Clix Capital Services Private Limived
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(A armount in INR locs, except for shore date unless stoted otherwise]

AL at Ag at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Note 20: Other equity
Capital reserve

Opening balance 121 121

Addition,/[Deduction] - ‘

Clasing balance 121 121
Capltal reserve created pursuant to merger

Opening balance 4,000 4, (0

Addition,/|Deduction) - ‘

Clpsing balance 4,000 4,000
Statutory reserve

Dpening balance 20,520 20,005

Transfer from retained earnings &7 426

Closing balance 20,607 20,530
Capital redemption reserve pursuant to buy back of shares

Opening balance 11.BED 11 880

Transfer from retained earnings E '

Closing balance 11,880 11 8RO
Securities Fremium

Qpening balance 8,145

Addition/{Deduction) 2,159 8,145

Closing balance 10,304 8,145
Share based payment reserve

Opening balance 663 334

Addition,/[Deduction) (&) 129

Closing balance 655 EE3
Retaimed earnings

Qpening balance 3,BET 1,985

Profit for the period 397 2075

Remeasurement of defined employvee benefit plans 6 53

Transfer to other resenes BT} [4.26]

Closing balance 4,033 3,687
Total 51,601 49 016




{a)

(b}

i)

{d)

{f)

Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial 5tatements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al amount in INR lacs, excent for share date unfess stated otherwise)

Nature and purpose of reserves:

Capital reserve: Till the year ended 31 March 2012, the Company was not required to pay any
amount to the General Electric Company, USA (then ultimate holding company) towards the cost of
options granted or shares allotted to the employees of the Company under thesa share based
compensation plans. Therefore, till the year ended 31 March 2012, the Company recognized share
based compenisation in the Statement of Profit and Loss with & corresponding credit to Capital
Reserve Account ($hare Options Quitstanding Accownt). There Is no corresponding liabklity for the
same and therefore same is in the nature of free reserve,

Capltal reserve created pursuant to merger: Duering 2012-13, Maruti Countrywide Auto Financial
Services Private Limited [MOW) was amalgamated with GE Money Financial Services Private Limited
[GEMFSPL) pursuant o the scheme of amalgamation. Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the
entire amount of authorised chare capital of the transferor company amownting to INR 4,000
divided into 40,000,000 equity shares of INR 10 each got transferred from the authorised share
capital to the authorised share capital of GEMFSPL as equity shares and Capital Reserve of INR 4,000
was created during the year ended 31 March 2013,

Statutory resenng: Statulony resens represents the reserve fund created under Section 45-1C of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Under Section 45-IC, the Company is required to transfer sum ot
less than teenty percent of its net profit every year. Accordingly, the Company has transferred INR
£7 (31 March 2020: INR 426), being twenty percent of net profits for the financial vear to the
Aratutary feterve, The statubory resense can be utilised for the purposes as specified by the Ressrve
Bank of India from time to time.

Capital redemption reserve pursuant to buy back of shares: During the year ended March 2017, the
Board of Directors in their meeting held on 4 November 2016 approved buy back of 118,803,425
equity shares of the paid-up eguity share capital of the Company at a price of INR 12.7 per fully paid
equity share from shareholders. The total number of equity shares of 118,303,425 were purchased
by the Company under the offer of buy back for a consideration of |NR 15,088,

Securities premium: Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares
The reserve can be wilised only for imited purposes such as issuance of bonws shares in accordance
with the prowvisions of the Companbes Act, 2013,

Share based payment reserve: The share based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of
equity-settled share based payments provided to employees of the Company and its subsidiary's
employees, induding key managerial personnel, as part of their remuneration,

Retained earnings: These represent the swrplus in the profit and boss account and i free for
distribution of dividend.
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(AN amount fn INR locs, excepd for share dofa unless stobed otherwise)

Az at Az at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Mote 21: interest income
On financial assets megsured ot amortised cost

Interest income on loans and advances 41,717 43,615

Interest incorme on finance lease receivables 8 12

Interest imcome: on debt securities 1,530 1,046

Interest income on inter corporate loans G962 -

Total {A) Gross 217 44,677
AL at A at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Note X2 Foes and commission

Debt advisory and other service fees (refer note 38) 418 502
Application and ather admin fees 5 910
Other charges 1,554 918
:Im EIHII

Asat Az at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

MNote 23: Met gain on fair value changes

(A} Met gain on financial
instruments at fair valve throwgh
profit or loss
{i] On trading portfolio

- Investments 483 1,063
(i} On fimancial instruments designated at fair value through profit o logs (£29) -
Total Net gain an fair value changes (A) 354 1,063
Fair value changes:
-Realised are 1,063
-Unrealised (2] .
Total Met gain on fair value changes [B) 354 1,063

As at Ag at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Mote 24; Other income

Met gain on derecognition of property, plant and equipment 7 -
Liabilities/jprovisions no bonger required written back 27
Interest incame

= @n income tax refund B2 331

- on fiked depasits 435 83
Interest mcorme on unwinding of discount on security depasit 25 7
biscellaneous Income 16 Th
Tatal 2,015 2,574
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Al amaunt in KR bacs, except for share doto wiless stofed offerwise)

#s at Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Mote 25: Finance costs
At omortised cost
Interest on borrowings (other than debt secuwrities)
- Term loan from banks Q9,015 10,722
- Term loan from financial institutions 39 353
- Bank cverdraft 9 EL]
- Inter-corparate leans 185 1,714
- Finance lease abligation 9 13
- rthaer inberests 2 5
- Securitised borrowing 1438 62
Interest on debl securities
- Digcount on commencial papers - 1.244
- Hon cormvertible debentures 14,647 13,358
Interest on Lease liabidity 115 9
Unwinding of discount on security deposits 24 4
Total 26,183 27 8X2
As at Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Note 36: Impairment on financial instruments
At omortised cost
ECL on lean assets T.61a (7416}
ECL on other financial assets 16 3E
Losan atgety written off 4211 10,379
ECL on Imvestmaents [55] 55
Total l.:l“.l'-ﬂ-l E
Az at Year onded
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Note 27: Employes benefits expenses
Salaries and bonus 3,963 5. 184
Share based experde/ |reverial] (255) 240
Contribution to provident and other funds [Refer Mote 31) 351 344
Staff welfare expenses a2 132
Total 4,081 5,905

IIE;EFF;,-J.'—'I":-‘___F




Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(AN amount in N8 bacs, excepl for share doto wiless stoted ofherwise)

As at Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Mote 28: Other expenses

Hent 34 154
Rates and taxes 44 181
Printing and stationery 30 244
Advertiserments and sales promatsen 149 199
Legad and professional charges® 1,855 3,085
SR Expense 18 .
Outsourced service Cost 1,489 T
Pastage, telegrams and telephanes 79 157
Travelling and cormveyance 35 413
Repairs and malntenance a4 334
Insuramoe 132 146
Electricity and water charges 16 55
Miecellaneous expenses 74 I
Tota 45% 5360

* Legal and professional charges includes auditors remuneration [excleding goods and service tax] comprises.
the fellowing:

Particulars G Y
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

As auditor

Statutory audit 25 5

Limited Review =
- Tax audit 3 3
- Other services 14 2
Reimbursement of expenses 1 2
Total I_E 3]_.
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Clin Capital Services Private Umited
Hetes to Standalone Financisd Statements for the yesr ended 31 BMarch 3011
(AN armdaunt in INE Lokfs, eacépt for dhore dale wnléss stoled odiverwie)

Note 20: Earming per sharg
Basig earnings per share [EP5) is calculated by dividirg the net prafil for the year attributable to equity holders ol the Company by the
weighted avbrage sumber of equity shares culstanding during the year

Dituted EFS |5 caloulated by dividing the nat profit attributable to equity hkolders of Company by the weighted average number af egquity shanes
outstanding during the year plus the sseighted average mumber of equity shares that wou'd be sswed on the comersion of all the dilutive
potential crdinary shares into crdinary shares.

Year ended Year ended

March 31 3021 Miwrch 31 2020
Foliowing reflects the profit and share data wsed in EPS computations:
Basic
‘Weighted average number of eguity shares for computtation of Basic EFS [in Lakhs] 14,176 13,513
Met profit for cabculation of badic EPS [INR] EL 2075
Basic esrning per share [in iIMR) 0.03 [ S L3
Dilusted
‘Weighted averape numbes of aquity sk o computation of Diluted EFS 14,237 13 548
Met prodit for caloulation of Diluged EPS (INR) 7 2,075
Dilered parming par share {In INR) 0.03 015
Nominal f Facs Walue of squity shares |bn INR) 1o 0

Reconciliation of weghied average rumer of equity shares far 1hi yead ended 31 March 2021 for basic and dilted eamings per shane;

Particulars Weighted average o, of shares
Basic Diluted

Fauity shares of foce value of IR 10 per share

Opening 13,523 13,548

dditiors foe pabentis) squity shares 653 &8

Clasing 14,176 14,227

Reconc liathon of weighied average rumiber of equity shares. for the vear ended 31 March 2020 Tor basic and dilied eamings per share:

Particulars wm AVETARE M. of shares

Basic Diluted
Eguity shoves of foor walue of WA 10 per shane
Opening: 12971 13,001
Additions for potential equity shares G52 24T
Closing 15,523 13,548

b — SN
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Clim Capitad Services Private Limited

Matis to Standalans Finarcial Statemants for the year anded 31 March 2021
{AN arsaunt & INR Lacs, exoepl for share datg unfess stated atheswiis)

Mate XX, Segment information

The Company™s primary business segment & reflected baved on the principal business carried out, e, Commercial financing [comprising
corporate Wand, retail aens, Fhance Eade 30l opisating leased), Accandinghy, Hd sepadate disc losung for segivent feporting B negulred o e
macde @ the finandial siataments of the Company, The Compary operates princigally within ingia and does rot hane operatans in econamic
enyirpnments with different risks and reburns; hence, i is considened operating in single grographical segment.

Mate 33, Change & lisbilities arising from fmancing sctheities

Particulars 1April 2020 Cashflows  Charpes in Exchange ke 31 March 2021
falr walues difference

Dbt securitesy 128313 [1,759) - - (237} 127 384

Berrrowings other than dedt securities 123,613 456 - [LiEx]] 12317

Tetal liakilities fram fnascing aabiities 252,993 {1,303 - {1, 535] 250,554

Particulars 1 April 2009  Canh Flows Chamges in Exchange ber® 31 March 2020
fairvalues  difference

Debt securities 135 369 |3 569} - - (421} 1253713

Bavrdreings gther than delbl iedusities 1!5|?ll-5 Iuﬂi‘} - EEHF 123,613

Totad liabilities from finamcing sctivities &1“ ilhlﬂ - -E_IHE

* Dgher colurmn ing uchis amonisaticon af (ransacTon Comt.
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Clix Capital Serviged Private Limited
Mofes to $tandalorse Financial #atements for the year ended 51 March 3001
(A0 v &9 N Lowvs, eacepd for shave dato unkes stofed obherivie)

Pt 34; Contingent labdlithe, provitsony snd commitments.
To miesl the Prancal hisdt of gusleenens, the COMpany anNtEm INCO varsut Frevocalle commirments, which primaily cormiat of undeawe
cormemitmaent 1o lend, Further the Company is 8o exporied o contingent Eabilithes arising from legal claims.

A)] Contingent Mabdlities
Claims againat company not acnowledged as debts
The Company™s pending Migitions comgeise ol claims sgainit the Company by the cuvlomeds. and pefainieg to protesdings pending wilk
Income Taw, Escise, Custom, Sales WAT tax and other sethorities. The Company has reviewsed ad its pending litigations and proceedings and
has afequaiply provided Tor where provisons arg requined and dadened a3 contiegent Fabilities whene apglicable, i it frandal statements.
Thi Campaiy dioed not expest the auldama ol 1hele prodéadingt to hive § maleial by bdverie eflect oA it Tinandldd Fiuls

Cladera againgt the Coempany nod acknowledged & debls amounts 10 WK 74 (31 March 2020 @ R T7], Theds melate [0 |awsuics, s,
imaribigations and progeedings, which arie in the ordinary courie of Buniness and includes amsuntd litgated against the Company net of
amount prosided for contingencles. While the wtimate llability cannot be sacevisined at this e, based on facts oarently smdable and
currint kinoswiedge of the applicable law, mansgement boleves that e cades will mot have a mabenal adverse aflect on the Company's
linancial \atements of ity Duihes g alicrd.

Bagid on ik demand rotices neceived Inom the e deparimeeets, (e Campany is congingently liable bor NS 306 bor ditect e ineSivect tax (31
March 2020 : INR 306 for dinect and indirect tax), The Company hat challenged thess demands. ‘While the uitimste sulcome of the above
mentisned appeeals cannot B asceriained at this timae, hnu!mu.mntwﬂlhlimm larr, managemant beleves that these law
suils pheusid ned hae 3 mabedial advenie affect on e Compary's (inancial sEMpments & ith Buliness operations.

The Company hur ghetr conporate guaranteds bo Banky an behalf of its subsidiary, The total of such guarantess as cm 31 March 3021 amaunts
b B i, 192 (A0 Parch 2000 B 524)

Bl Provisions

The diclodere of provisions manmement for the year ended 31 March 2021 i a3 Tollows:-

Mature of provision Opening Addition Rewersal Closirg
wlilisation

Prawislon Tor indirect tax 1ama 43 1119

Prowision for customer dispanes 10 . 10

Thi deiciomae ol proviiions mavement Bor the year ended 31 March 2020 & as T lowsc-

Hature of provision Dpening Addition Eeversal Cloakrg
wiilisation

Prénvision Tor indinect Lax &7 SE] (585] 1Lom

Prowision for customer dapeies 18 = L] 10

Tatsl E42 OE1 EI;I.I 1,080

Nature of provivionsc

Prawishon hor indisgct tia: The Campany Fas redagnied proviiond on bicdes of astamited pobestial losses ising cunt of it nability 18
recover imdeedt {ax refaied smounts from chenks and other Btigation with various sales tasenvice tax) poods snd seneop Bam awihorithes,

Provision for disputes with cllents: The Company has recognaed provision for settlement of cerain daputes with 25 customar.

€} Commmitment

[1} Capital commitrment amounting bo 158 153 (31 Manch 2000 INRE 497) as st 31 March 2021,
[ii} The Company has & revooable loan comimioment of IR 5,976 (31 March 20000 INR 627) towards undrasm loas sanctions as at 31 March
2021

Yot




Clin Capital Services Private Limited
Notes 1o Standalone Financisl Statements for the year ended 51 Manch 3001
(AT amnt i W Lok, excepl for shane 8ana unless sransd anhenanse]

Note 35: Related party disclosures

Aa per ind AS M, the disclosures of iranasctions with the relsted parties sne given beloa:

Particalars

Plutus Financiats Put. Limited [Maurii)|

Clix Finance Indsa Privarte Limited

Clix Housing Finance Limited

Clix Analyics Privine Limited

Clix Loans Privave Limiged

GE Money Financial Sorvices Privaibe Limited Ersployees Growp Gratuity Schema

Keyy managerial perscnnsl

Bhavesh Gupaa (Ti9 31 bty 20010

Vilas Apgarwal (Till 23 September 1019)
Rashimi Mohanty [From 28 November 3019)

Relationship

Helding Company

Subsichary

Subsidisry

Fellore Sudtrsidiary

Felier Sustisidiary

Post employment benefit plan

Chisd Executive Oificer (CED)
Whad bp-fires Director
Whaale-gime Direcior and Chisd
Fenancsa! Cfficer |CFO)

Lisz of redated panties whare control peivis and relaned parties with wham trensactions have [aken place and refationdhips:

{b) The nature and volume of trarsactiona carmied ouf with the above related parties in the ondinary cowrse of business are as

Tl oranen

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Blarvesh Gupta - Chief Executive Offices (Till 31 July 2020)
Rernunedalion
Share-based payment

Rashmi Mohanty - Whele time director and CFD (From Movembaer 2019)
Rernuneration
Shanebased paymesnt

Vikas Apgarwal - Whale time director [Till September 2013)
Ramundration
Share: based payment

187 03
x 115
187 432
£S5 -
5 2
I.E .
44

= A

* Thir remunerataon gheen 1o key managerial personne! does not include the prowisioens made for grataity and leave berefit,

as they are determined on actuarial Basis Tor the Company 38 3 whale.
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Clim Capital Services Private Limited
Netes 10 Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 51 Manch 3001
(AT amant i W Lo, sacepl for shane dana unless sransd anfenanse]

1. Caber transactions.

[Mame af relited party

Year ended 31

rch 021

Year ended 31
Barch 2020

Transactiond

Income
intenetl an finonoe lease recefvabler
Clix Fenanios Hedia Private Limited

inferest an infer-corparare loans
Cl Fnance ndia Private Lemited
Clix Housing Finance Put, Limited

Experditure
datenesl an fRaanee biaie obligation
Chix Fnance india Private Limited

interest on intercorparate loans
Chix Finance india Private Limited

Services foken
Cllw Analytics Private Limited

Eapsnise reimburismants
ANacsliani mads

Clix Fanance ndia Private Limited
Cliv Howsing Finance Pyt. Limited

Alaciiens received
Chis Fenance Wil Private Lienitsd
Clix Housing Finanoe Put. Lirated

Armounts paid for the Company
Chix Finance india Private Lmited
Chis Houming Fimanee Lamited

Amount pald by the Company
Clin Howsing Finance Limited
Cha Anahtics Private Limited
Clin Logans Private Limited

fmount recevied for transfer of fimendal assets [assignment)
Cl Fnance india Private Limited

Arneunt paid for tranader of Ninancial asets (assignment)
Chx Finance ndia Private Lemited
Clix Houwsing Finance Privabe Limited

Proceeds fram bsue of Share Capital
Plrtus Financials P, Lirnited

Contribution made to post employment benefit plan
GE Money Finandal Servioes Private Limited Employess Group Gratisty Scheme

a57

185

3,795

6,164

10

12

1587
5

3,033

4,500

19,3593

st




Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Hotes 1o Mandalone Financis| S1atements for the year ended 11 March 2021
AL vmear i WA Lencs, eacdpd for flane dalo waless ehaled edfririvise ]

Hamie of refated party

Year ended 31
Msrch 2001

Year ended 31
March 2020

Imter-corporate lasns taken
Takea

Chsd Firancd redia Prisako Lirited
Repmid

Clim Firance India Private Limited

Aidirts 1aken on finande lease
Teken

O Fimance bdia Prvate Linted
Repoid

Clix Fimence Wedin Prrvate Limted

Imber-corporats leans ghen
Giwen

Clim Fimgnce radia Prvate Limited
Clie Moudeng Finante Limied

Asvets ghven on finance lease
Gower

Clim Firgnice bnadia Pravate Limited

Ripaid
Clin Fimange india Pridate Lirited

L F

10,500

9,000

2,500

136

a5

51

Balance Sheet - Outstanding Balances

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Balance Dutstanding a4 at year end 1

Amounts recoverohle
Finarmge lease receivable
Clid Firuphiad Waddia Private Lirmined

Inter-corporate loans
Cin Fimgnoe Irdia Prvate Limided
Clix Wouddng Finarde Limited

invirstmenis held by the Cosmpary
Ofx Fimanoe bdia Private Limided
(i Mousing Finamce Limited

Inkereampany fecaivable
Clig Firuance India Privato Limited
(it Houséng Finamce Limited
Ol Loares Private Limited

Amounts papabie

Intercompany payabde
Clix Anaiytics Private Limited

inter corporate loans
Clis Finance ndia Private Limited

Finance lease ablgatians
Clim Firgenoe Indin Private Limited

25,0000
10,500

59,110
5,500

3,551

99,170
5,500

1,028
119

17

6, 500

LEF

st




Cli Capital Services Private Limited
Mates to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
AN ameunt & INR Locs, excepd for share dito waless stated otherwise)

Mote 36; Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital indudes ssued equity capital, shane premiuvm and all other eguity
reserves atiributable to the equity holders of the Company, The primary obgective of the Company’s capital management s to
maximilse the sharehalder value.

That Company manages ity capitall structune and makes adjustments. in light of changes in scoramic conditions and the requirements
of the financial covenarts. The Company monitors capital using debt equity ratie.

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Detits 252,341 253,955
Net woth 155,200 189,774

1.29 1.34

In order to achieve this owerall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims 1o ensure that it meefs
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing koans and bBorrowings. Breaches in meetng the financial covenants would permit
the bark to immediately call loans and borrowings.

Ho changes were made in the obpectives, polcies or processes far managing caplital during the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31
March 20200

Maote 3F. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

There are no ampunts that need to be disclosed in accordance with the Micro Smadl and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006
[the "MSAED') pertaining to micra or small enterprises for the year ended 31 March 2021 [ no supplicr has intimated the Compary
abaut its stetus &5 micre oF small enterprises of its registration with the appropaate autharity under MSMED].

Note 38: Revenus from contracts with customers

Credit compliznce and debt advisery fees

The performance abligation in regards of arrangements where fees is charged per transaction executed is recognised at point in teme
wihen irade is evecuted. b othed arrangements, where fees i ficed irrespective of aumber of transaction exeouled i3 recognised over
the term of contract.

Year ended Year ended

e #1 March 2021 31 March 2020
Type of services or service

Debit advisory and credit compliance fees 418 502
Total revenue from contracts with customers H_B 502
Geographical markets

india 418 2032
Owrtiicde bndia - -
Toltal revenue from contracts with customers 418 502
Timing af revenus recognitien

Sorvices transferned at a paint in time 418 503
Services transherred ower Lime - -
Total revenue ram contradts with cusiomens 418 50F

Infarmaition about company's performance obligation

The performance obligation in regards of arrangements where the above fees is charged per transaction executed i recopnised at
paint i time when transaction it executed and senvices are completed.

ot
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Clx Capital Services Private Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al amount in INR Locs, except for shore doto unless stated aotherwise]

Note 40: Risk Management

40,1 Introduction and risk prafile

Company has operations in India. Whikt risk is inherent in the Company's activities, It is managed through an Integrated risk
management lramework, including ongoing identilication, measurerment and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other
controdi. This process of risk managemaent i critical to the Company's continuing profitability and each individual within the
Cormpary is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilithes. The Comgany Is exposed to credit risk,
ligustity risk, interest rate rigk and marked rigk, It i3 8050 subject 1o varous operating snd business fsks.

40,11 Risk management structure and palicies

The Board of Directors ase responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk management
strategies and principles, The Risk Management Committee has the overall responsibility for the development af the risk
strategy and implementing principhes, frameworks, podicies and limits. The Risk Management Committee is responsible for
rmanaging risk decisions and monitonng risk levels and reports to the Board.

The Risk Management Unit is responsible for implementing and maintaining rigk related procedures 1o ansune an independent
contred process is maintained. The wnit works closely with and reports to the Risk Management Committee, to ensure that
procedures are compliant with the overall framework.

The Unit |5 also responsible for monktoring compliance with risk principles, policies and limits across the Company. Each
business growp has it awn unit which is responsible for the control of risks, inchading manitoring the actual risk of exposures
against authorised limits and the assessment of risks of new preducts and structured transactions. The Company™s Treasury is
responside for managing its assets and Habilities and the owerall financial strectere. It s also primarily responsible for the
funding and liquidity risks of the Company.

40,2 Credit Risk

Credit risk &5 the risk that the Company will incur a loss because Its customers or counterparties fall to discharge their
contractual obligations. The Company manages and controds eredit risk by setting imits on the amount of risk it is willing to
accept for individual counterparties and for geographical and industry concentrations, and by monitoring exposures in relation
tay sanch lirndts, Credit risk is monitored by the credit risk department of the Company’s independent Risk management Unit. It [
their respansibility ta review and manage credit risk. 1t has a diversified lending rodel and focuses on four broad eateganies e
(i1 Consurmar lending, (i) SME lending, (i) loan against securities properties and (iv] Corporate lending. The Company assesses
the credit quality of all financlal instrements that are subject to credit risk
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial whmmmum 2021
(AN amourst v NR Locs, except for share dota valess stoted otherwise)

40.2.2 Analysks of rsk concentration
Thae Company’s concentrations of risk for loans are managed by type af losn- Corporate and Retail

Loans Do cusiomans 31 March 2021 31 March 2030
Corporate
Industry portfolio
- Airteves & refated sernces 2,355 1,118
- FMCG F 10674
- Holels & Rev@wrants 1,068 1031
= infrastoascture 3,791 103%
- At Ancilliaey 3,751 -
- bedia and entertainmert a4.618 Tagy
- htarufacturing 0873 -
- Roal wstate 5,537 7,732
- Engimesring, procarement, construction LBTS -
- Financial servoes B, 5065 16,219
- Pharmacewstical - 12212
- Edutatian _3,533 3.7
47,559 B ER1
Ratail
) Sub-portfolio
- Loan agsrst Propsrty S1.67% 5176
- e f infa Lease =21 Th
Business Loans 47 208 59,950
- Personal lcans 97,852 ar.TEa
- HeaThcare Firminde 5312 -
- Conomer Durables 2 445
- Loan agsrat electrank paynents 6.R55 15,200
- Sugpphy Chiainy 453 413
- Thwics Wheeler L 1% 805
- bl cofparati hash 35,500 -
254, 70% 237 616
B Secuned) Linseoared
- acurnid 66,837 &7, T34
= Uinsecaned 187 8E5 155 HE3
154, 70 2XTELE
Total 302,305 300,257
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Clix: Cap#al Servioes Private LUmied
Miches fo Bandaloss Fingncial Tiatemests for the year ended 11 Mards 1031
(AN pomost i PR [ocs. emrent for shane diote wiless stoted stheveie)

Warkes rigk b the ek fhat the sk vabgs or futeee cash Nows of o Mnancial irpbrumenst il Tacheate becsuse of changes in marked
Fatnowrs. Such changes s the walues of firgncial irsrusments, may rewi® from changes in e inenest rases. anad other market changes. The
Doy s ERD0AITE (o manket ok B primanty on soooan of Wviee rate ik

Irtereal raba rhll

Ther compaey |t wibiect 1o intevest cobe rid, prissarily since it lend 1o centomen: o1 ratey and for mabnty periody Bt may dhifer from
Turding sceroes. Inerest raies aop haghly sensiive S0 many tactors beyornd conbrol, inchyding the monetary policies ol the Reserve Bank
ol india, dereguiacan of tha Tasadial Lecior in nda, domeiic Fnd WIETEng soonDmil 3k pORIGl condinoss, wilatos and oiher
Fasrnie, 171 0o bV O TR IHETESL FRLE ik rhe Company seel [0 optimipe boriraeng poolie besweea shaam-1em and bong-rerm loans.
Thas coifigsirty sSOpts furidhing WaeEed b efduls Shrertilied hrkdufCe-{asig opladn 10 misising cow and mdadmice ssbilny of Tunds.
Ansela ared abelter, are calegdrund nilo varkous e Bulcet Suied om Ther matunien aod Aaset Lasbly Mansgerest Commiiee
wuperEe @m rilmir rale e Rivily nepor percde by for siaeumend of Bl rete rakn

Ininreat rabe uemid ity

Thi following toble demorairabes. the sensinity (o2 reaaonably possbie change i steret rases |l other wanables being comtant] of
th Doamipuarsds satessasen ol grofin and So55.

3] Loans [Fosving]
Weat endked 11 Masch DTl Yewr ended 31 Masch DOBS
Particulary Barwin pezirdy feci cnproft  Rash poink EHect on profit
erlon tax bedory tan
Irereaue in basn poisis 51 TES 50 Elrd
Ceprpase in Ranky podmy 5} 52511 S0 [4E7]
(0} Bosrawings fother than debi securities) (Noating _ I
\'ﬂ'lfﬂd!l‘l._“ﬂi mwumu_
Partigalary Baasis. gy EfectonProf  Rash poinis Effect on Prafit
lsrfinrw Bim beiard Lan
Ircrease in hasn gty 5 2T 50 (40|
Degrease in bornh podnny e an B ] 0%
) Dbt Securities [Roating)
Yeur ended 11 March J21 Yoar ended 11 March 2000
Particulass Bt gins ifect onProfll  Rashs points: fiece on Profit
berlorg Bax bedore tax
IrcPE@e i bass poiscs 5 [asa) 50 [500)
Cascrisasd i Badiy poby e ] ELE] ] Ll i)

Lquity price rh

The Compey's B sgulty secunities ane sulcepalble to markst price fik arsiag G encenaingier aboat fature vk ol the
PELIER SECLTIES. The COMPSTY Manages The saulyy prce rish tiough dherufcaton and by placng lmis o idnsdua? and tocal
sy Iorumeet. Aesorts on the sauly portiolis are scheshned 1o the Company’s senlad masagement on 4 regulsd Bash The
Cowtipurry s Biiedl of Decters ket a5 asgivedd B PGty IFnarilives il ded i,

tquity price wmitivity

This fslbowing table destamly ibeh The Sathdly B5 & feaianalily poiaible cbasge 0 Eguty piices [ofl etk variabils Bang cosdlasl] of
the Comparny's ilahesent of grofit and ks

o) Irrewsitmist in unis of iieual Fund

Vst ended 11 March 3021 Vs endded 11 Maoch 2000
Particul s .} EMect oo peodin 1 EHext o0 profit
st fine nam bredare 1an
IrarEas in RAY s 159 0% 5
Dearrease n Ml A5 (L] LY 5]
e e in Exuity o
Yemr ended 11 March 7028 Year ended 11 March BOR0
Partiouars = Tifect o Profi % an
berlone fax hedore tas
IParedri ) MATEL e 05 2 3 2
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Clix Capital Servites Private Limited
Mates 1o Sandalone Financial Statementa for the year ended 31 March 20321
AN avndual i R [aes, excdpl for shere dale walesd sioted sifdrudse)

Mote 41 : Maturity analytis of assets and liabilities
The tabke below shaws contractual matunty profile of carrping value of asiets and liabilitees:

¥1 March 2021 31 March 2010
Within 12 Afver 12 Within 12 Afver 12
P months ot Toim months manvths T
Finncisl Asseis
Cash and cash equivalents 6.21713 521 13573
Bank Bal other tha
n ance mia) 2788 6184 E4TI 104 917
absve
Lt 103,393 184, 640 288,033 121,266 172375
IrfredtmEnts 32378 104, 263 137.% Th21 113,639
Diber Nnandial 535818 5091 TH0 5821 1,509 7
Ran-financial Assets
Current i asse 3.IB5 3285 E34E
Dafarred tan asets {net) 5,026 502 4471
Property, Plant snd Eguipment &62 [ 11TF] B52
Cthisr intangible assets 3301 3,301 1,696
Capits wodl i progness = - = =
IramGibie asoks urdler
478 a7 i
i cprsin s
Feighit-of use aswets . 1,030 1.0 . ihY
Citlver no-Financlal assets 625 2347 2932 575 2020
Azset held for sale 511 - Eltl B
Total Assets sss _signs aesiial _iasjes a7
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabdities
Tradse Payabie
0] voral outstanding duss aof
chisditors other than micia 5666 5.666] 535 535
el pres and small enterpeises
Crther Payables
(i} total outstanding dues of
oreditars other than miona 1304 ! 2304 I 580 25804
erlerprites and small enderprisey
Debi Securitees B3.414 B4 970 127 iB4 18782 106627 1293
Earrowings (Other tham debt
sectses] 59 My 53,200 123.1 79,551 44,063 133,614
Lizase liability 305 a2 1,267 207 &35 718
Citkver financial liabilithes 5947 Pl ] &, 2351 2351
Raon-Financal Liabilithes
Prenitsans. 76 1,124 L 33 1,191 1224
Diirviar Wor-Financis! Lishiliises 00 43 043 B0 -
Teta| linbilities M I.I-IEII'I Ii?lll.-ll I.Eﬂ' %ﬂi Ii%
Por:t 13 867 181,333 195, 200 37,869 151,905 185,774|
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Clix Capits] Sirvices Privans Limised
Mot ta Mandalona Flnandlal Sestements for the year ended 31 March 11
[l amount in AR Lecs, ewcent for shore dofe unfess stoled aihensise)

Mote 43, Conporate social responsibilicy

The gross amount remsred te be spent by the Company during the ywear 15 INR 1E (Presious year i), The Commpany has not incurmed any expenditure on
CSR activities for the year ended 31 March 20F1. The Company has oreated provision for the said amount of INE 13 [Frevious year Bl sith regard to the
CSR acthities i thie Finardal vlabersent 107 cufrent year.

Mote 34, Eapenditure in loreign currency

Wiar ended Fear ended

31 March X031 51 March Jag
SV Sl FAPENSes . 7
Lisgal and profeitional 354 11
Dt Houster Cont - 17

354 L7

Note 45, Un-hedged Ioreign Curmendy Expodunt

The Comparry's expowuie in respect of forelgn ourency denominaded Jaasts 35 at ¥1 March 201 nok hedped by dérhvative ibatroments or othdraise s S
|Frewious vear Nill. Similar asmount in tracde payabie s S0 T N8 L36] [Prevbous year LSO 1 (N8 BT1L

Nobe 46, Disclosune pursuant bo Beteree Band of India Cirowlar no. RBA HN19:20, 220 DOR. No. BRBC. 632 104048, 200 9:20:

Az mb 3L March | A st 31 Mareh

Ii. IP‘IT‘I:IE-I

. & 221 a0

i Advances cotstanding i SM A rverdue categories, where the moraiprssmy'delerment was evtended. In B0 B07E
/ terms ol paragraph I and 3 of the cirodar fas of 79 February 2030)

| [} Iﬁnwrm amcurd whene assel clasification benefit iy extended (ai of 31 March 20FES 31 Mach 2000) - 157
: Preration sl it of paragras® 5§ of 10 eirculss | AL per Bara 4. 3500icablo 16 MBFCL covaned undsr

|1l ETa ME

ind AS]
Ilrv] |F'T¢d'||i=lﬁ+d-'ru4brﬂmiﬂu wippapes in term of parsgragh 6 of e cingule 114 -
I[-..| Inmuua'- prosisions s teres of paragraph 6.of the cincular ] pIE

* Thare ane Mil scoounts where asdet classification benefit b extended B0 31 PMarch 207 1. Post the mosatorium peniod, the movesent of aging has been at
oy

*= Thiz Company has made adeguate providen for impairement loss allowance [as per ECL model] for the vear ended 31 March 202 1. The residual
prowision of IR 854 has been written backfeduated by the Company in March 2001 a5 per the ceosdar.
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Clix Capitsl fervices Private Limited

Hotes 1o Standalone FEnanclal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2031
(AT amouant i INE Lacs, except Tar share data unfess stabted othenaise]

Mobe 47, Dischaasrs parsuant bo BB Matiication - RBI 2015207170 DOR {NBFC)OC PO Mo, 1050 22, 10106 B0 ES-20 Deted 13 Manch 2020 -
A& coemparhae bebween provision required ender Incosse recognition, asset dlassHication and presskondng (IRALF] and galrment allowances a3 per Ind A% 108

Financisl instruments’:
Liss Alowaries ProiHase
Bsset dassiica Grods Canrying | (Prowisions) as reguined as DHiTerEnce EETwaeen
b as per Ind AS | Amownd st per | required under | Net Carrging | per IRACP | ind A% 109 peosishkoens
st Clasvication as per BRI Moema 109 el AS bl A5 109 mamount PN and IRALP ncema
1 2 3 4 Sa3.4 L] Fad5
(Perlorming Asse1s
F [ssage 1 238,701 3,058 235,643 950 2,108
Eﬂ!l 52720 4,751 a7ara 3220 1,531
Subtatal 151,480 7803 281621 4.1M 31,639
|Man-Pedarming Assety (NPA)
| Jieage 10476 i34 435 1048 175
|Boutntsd - up ta 1 year Seage 3 3 1x8 160 fd %0
[11 3 yeurs Seagi 3 - . -
[rasee 1han 3 yeas | FTTLE : : .
Subitobal 13875 6,863 A2 1L1XE 5355
fross fsaage 3 . . . . ;
|subtotal tor NP& 13,875 6,463 A 402 L1ZE 5335
Oehier R fuch as E1S receiabbe which are in the
scopee of e A5 108 but not covered wnder corres [20R® 1 LT 5 LET) £l
Income Becognition, Asset Claasification and [iage 2 21 1 0 1
Prowigiceing [SACP ) npmg Hage J
[Subbatal
Pape 1 Ti4A00 1,065 186,400 450 3118
Total Saage I 53,750 4,753 AT 3,230 LA3E |
¥ 10,878 6,463 4483 1,1k 5,335
Testal 353, 0BE 4,778 IREELD 5, 208 8,980
FI.J’ [ ril'l:::—__ﬁ—.
= .J_'_ it .
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Clix Capits] Services Private Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

LAY amount in [MA Lacs, escept for share data unless stated oiberaise]

Mote 48, Public Disclosure on Liquidity Risk as required by R8I circalar DOR.NBFC (PD) OC. Mo.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 04 Movember 2015

(I} Fanding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings:

Mumber of Significant .
. g Ameunt % of Total Deposits % of Todal Liabilities
13 20016 NA 5%

* Total Barmawings represents Total Bormowings reduced by Rability against Securitied Portlalio

(i} Top Xl large deposits (emownt and % of total deposits);

BiOE ApplicaDie,

[Hi} Total of top 10 borrowings (amount and % of total bormowings):

Amourt

% of Total 'B!nrrn-'dr‘:"

[EERED)

B9

*Total Borrowings represents Total Borrowings redwced by llability against Securitired Portfolio

[iv} Funding Concentration based on significant instrument / product:

Hasne of the instrumentprodsct

% of Total Lisbsises

MorrConvertibie Debentures

127,384

Tenm Loan from banks

52,789

Term: Loan from otheers

17115

{v) Stock Ratics:

&r. Mo.

Particulars

% of Total Public Funds

# of Total Liabilities

% of Total Assets

Commercia’ papars

Hor-corvenibie debeniunes (origanal
maturity of rl"'.i;l- tham arse year|

-

Crthar short-term liahilities

55%

51%

(v} Pnstimtional set-up for Bquidity risk managemaent;
Thie Board of Directors has the overall respossibilicy for establishing the risk management irarwrwork for the Company, The Board, i e
has established an ALM Commitiee [ALCD) for evaluating. manitoring. and reviewing liqusdity and frtenest rate risk asing in the Company on
both sides al the Balance sheet. The Board based on recommendastions froen the ALCD has prescribed policees and the risk limits. for the
management of hgusdity rigk,
ALCD eommities is respaniible for managing ke risks srising 0ut of Asser Liabilty mismatches condient with the regulatosy requitements
and internd! ridk toleranced astabihad by the Board. Amongest othesr respoardibilities, ALDD ks Bbean pmposered 1 doacide thae Pursding mix
for the Company in Sght of the Future Business trategy snd prevaibng market condithions. ALCD committes meeting is conducted at least
ance in g quarter gnd the ALDD minates are reviewed by the Board from Eme (o time,
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iClix Capital Services Private Limited
Annexure 1 to Notes to Standalone financlal statement for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Amount in Indian Rupees in Lacs, unbess otherwise stated)

il

Capital adeguacy ratio

| Particul s Asat Ay 3t

31 March 3021 31 March 2020
il CRAR %) 21.95% 149.400%
i} CRAR - Tier | capital [%) 220 oL
] CRAR - Tier |l capital (%] 0,05% 0. 79%
i) Arnpant of sisbordinated dobt raised a5 Tier-1 capital
¥ Arncant raised by ssee of Perpetual Debt instruments 3 =

Pamicul a8 A Ai
31 March 3021 31 March 2090

{1} Wadug of Investments
i} Gross Walue af Investments
[a] inndia 13770 121,315
(b} Dutside India, . :
{il} Prowesiana lor Depreciation
[a] Inindia - 55
B} Dutside India,
fiil} Met Walse of nvesimenis
&) I i 137,150 121,260
{8} Dutside India, - -
H21 Blavement of prowisiona held towards deprecistion oan
(I} Opening balance 55 -
(i} Add : Prorisions made duning the year - 55
(iil} Less o W rite-offfwite-back of excess prosishons during 55 -
fthee year
{he} Closing balance : 5

Derivatives

a There are no foraand rate agreement; Interest rate swap entered into by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31
Fiarch 2000,

b There are no exchange traded interest rate derrvalives entered into by the Compary duting the year enided 31 March 2021 and 31
March 2030,

€] The Company daed nal have any fik management policy peraining 10 derrratives, aisociated ritks and busineds purpdse served b3 The
Company daes rod take sy of the dervatives mentioned in a and b abave during the yesr ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March D020,

Ut




iClix Capital Services Private Limited
Annexure 1 to Notes to Standalone financlal statement for the year ended 31 March 2021

{Amount in Ind

ian Rupees in Lacs, unkess otherwise stated)

A4,  [a] Details of assignment transactions undertaken

[ Particulars Far the year ended Far the year ended
31 March 2021 N1 March 2020
il Mo. of accournts ang 1
il Agpregate vilie of acoownty 160, gross enpodure 11,448 9030
i}  |Aggregate corsideration far assigned portian

iv]

Agdditional considersion redlised in respect ol accoums

tranaferned in easlier years
imias aver net Bk value

11,448

§,0%9

(b} Detalls of securitisation transaction of the Company as an originator In respect of sutstanding amount of
securitised assens is given below:

Particulars

As at
31 March 3031

Az at
31 March 2030

Mo of SPVs spansored by the NBFC for securitisation
transactions®

10§

Total amount of securitised azsets as per books of
the 5PVs sponsored

35,062

11421

Total amgunt of exposures retained by the NBFC to
comply with MRR as on the date of halance sheet

a, (Mi-balance sheet cxposwres
+First loss
-Ortheers
b. On-balance sheet exposures
“First loss (In the form of Fioed Do posits)
“Crvercollateralisation
-Others

6,366
30

1547

Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions
other than MAR
a, (Hi-balance shaet exposures
i|. Expaswre b awn Securitisation
-First loss.
-Others
i), Exposure 1o third party securitisations
-First loss.
-Others
b. On-balance sheit expogures
i). Exposune to awn Securitisation
-First loss
-Others
il). Exposure to thind party securitisations
-First loss
-Cithears

-

o ;-'_E,_"if-_-‘__.-.

=

e
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Annexure 1 1o Notes to Standalone financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2021

{#rnount in kndian Rupees in Lacs, unless otherwese stated)

A5, Detalls of mon-performing finencial assets purchased) sold
&) Details of nos-parfcdming NRancis | Siiets. purchagned:

Waar endid Asak
IP""""“"'""" 31 Masrch 2021 11 March 2000
1 (&l Mo. of sccounts purchined during the year -
(b} Aggropite culstanding z
(&l OF these, number of accounts restroftuned during the) -
2 et
(b} Aggregste owtstanding -
[lb] Details of non-performing finsnclal assets soid:
Tear ended s at
|Particutsrs ¥1 March 2021 31 March 2020
1 Ma, ol accounts sold 1
Aggregate outstanding 11,300
3 hppregabe consideration recebved 7. LHG

#f,  Aevenue Recognition

Thari haree béen ma indlance whire fivenes recogrition hai been postponed pending the fesslution of significant uncertamies, Please refer

Mot 3.3 for revenas recognition poboy.

AT,  Detaily of finanging of panent company preducty

There has been no finanding mede by the Company of parend company’s products during the year ended 31 Mach 3021 and 31

March 2020,

AR,  Detalls of Single Borrower Limit (S8L) / Growp Borresser Limit [GEL)

Buring the year erded 31 March 3021 and 31 March B30, the Company’s credft exposures o single bosrowers and group besrowers were

wilhen thi Semniis prescribed by REL

A%, Usseouared Advances

Total loans and advances as at 31 March 2021, include A LAT,B65 [Previous year 169,823] which ane wrsecured loans.

AL, Regivtration obtained fram ether financial vector regulatar

Tha ceenpany has ot obtsingd any registration rom other Bnancisl o1 reguliters.

All. Disclosure of Penalties imposed by ABI| and other regulators

N perlty haa been imsposed by 1he Bl or ary other regulator duting the year,

s rdte—
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